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L_ucas Local School District - Richland County

Elected Officials
as of June 30, 1988

Elected Officials Title Term of Office Surety Amount Period
Board of Education _
Mary Stotts President 01/01/26 - 12/31/99 (A $ 20,000 111187 - 171700
Michael Fanello Vice President 01/01/26 - 12/31/99 None
Linda Zickefoose Member 01/01/98 - 12/31/01 None
R. Steve Grover Member 01/01/88 - 12/31/01 None
John Trumpower Member 01/01/98 - 12/31/01 None

Siatutory Legal Counsat

James J. Mayer
Richland County Prosecuting Afiorney
38 South Park Sireet

Mansfigld, Ohio 448502

{A} Nationwide Mutual insurance Company




Lucas Local School District - Richland County
Administrative Personnel
as of June 30, 1998

Term of Office
Title or Contract Period ,Sure’;y ~ Amocunt Period
Treasurer ) ) }
Julie Henke Organizational Meeting 1986 to (A) $25,000 (B)

Organizationat Meeting January 2000

Superintendent :
Ropert Delane 8/1/96 - 7/31/01 (A) $20,060¢  1/1/97 - 1/1/00

{A) Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company

(B} Covers term of office I _



Lucas Local School District — Richland County
Index of Funds
As of June 30, 19298

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES:

General Fund

Special Revenue Fund Types:

Public School Support Fund

Other Grant Fund

Venture Capital Grant

District Managed Student Activity Fund

Professional Development Fund

Talented and Gifted Grant

Mzanagement Information Systems Fund

Title VI-B Special Education; Assistance to States for
Handicapped Children Fund

Chapter | - Financial Assistance to Meet Special Educational Needs
Of Disadvantaged Children Fund

Chapter Il — Consoiidation of Federal Programs for Elementary and
Secondary Education Fund '

Debt Service Fund Types;

Bond Retirement Fund

Capital Projects Fund Types:

Permanent Improvement Fund
School Net Plus Fund
Emergency Repairs Grant

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE. . .
Enterprise Fund Types: ;

Food Service Fund
Uniform Schaool Supplies Fund
Farm Service Fund

Internal Service Fund Type:

Special Rotary Fund
Self-Insurance Fund

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES:
Trust and Agency Fund Types:

Expendable Trust:

Special Trust Fund

Non Expendable Trust.

Endowment Fund

Agency:

District Agency
Student Managed Activity Fund



STATE OF OQHIO - 35 North Fourth Street, 1¥ Floor

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43215
. Telephone 614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-728-7398

Board of Education
Lucas Local School Disirict
Lucas, Ohio 44843

We have reviewed the Independent Auditor's Report of the Lucas Local School District,
Richland County, prepared by Moore Stephens Apple, for the audit period July 1, 1997 through
June 30, 1999. Based upon this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit
required by Section 117.11, Revised Code. The Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying
financial statements and, accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not express an opinion
on them.

Qur review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected
by the OChio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the
Auditor of State, regulations and grant requirements. The Lucas Local School District is
responsible for compliance with these laws and regulations.

Auditor of State

January 7, 2000



MOORE STEPHENS APPLE

1540 West Market Street Certified Public Accountants 29550 Detroit Road
Akron, Chio 44313 Cleveland, Obic 44145
Telephone: 330/867-7350 Telephoae: $40/871-8288
Fax: 330/867-8866 Fax: 440/871-6452

Repott of Independent Auditors

Board of Education
Lucas f.ocal School District
Lucas, Ohio 44843

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the Lucas Local Scheof Disfrict as
of and for the year ended June 30, 1998. These general purpose financial statements are the respensibility of
the Lucas Local School District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general
purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about
whether the general purpose financial statements are free of materal misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
managerment, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Lucas Local School District as of June 30, 1998 and the results of its operations and
cash flows of its proprietary fund types and nonexpendatie trust fund for the year then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accouniing principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 2, 1989
on our consideration of the Lucas Local School District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and granis.

We did not audit the supplemental information dealing with Year 2000 as listed in the table of contents and
therefore express no opinion thereon.

WHoone Steptens »pple

Akron, Ohio
December 2, 1999

M An independently owned and operated professional corporation member of Moore Stephens North America, Inc. — members in principal cities throughout North America.
S Muoore Stephens Narth America, Inc. is 2 member of Moore Stephens Tnternationdl Limited — members in principal cities throughout the world,

HEINICK * APPLE « HILLOW « GORNIK



General Purpose Financial Statements
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LUCAS LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
RICHLAND COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUUND BALANCES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, [998

Fiduciary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type
Totat
Special Debt Capital Expendable (Memorandum
General Revenue Service Projects Trust Only)
Revenues:
From local sources: :
TaXES . . v v e e e e e e e 51,548,560 $61,912 $1,610,472
Tuition . ... ..o e 57,726 ’ 57,726
Earnings on investments. . . .. ...... 59,716 s611 $444 5264 61,035
Other local revenues. . . . . . ... v v v 30,530 73,947 4,525 644 110,646
Otherrevenue. . . . . . v v v v v v v v v v 9,184 0,184
Intergovernmental - State, ., . . . . ... .. 1,536,499 42,033 5,398 67,707 1,651,637
Intergovernmental - Federal . . . . . .. .. 1,308 49,809 51217
Totalrevenue . . . . . - . . .. . ... 3,234,739 175,684 67,310 T2676 908 . 3,551,317
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction;
Regular . , . .. ... ....... ... 1,282,929 24,353 73,378 1,380,660
Special . . . .. ... L 179,121 45,409 224,530
Vocational . . . .. .o v v 106,034 1,200 107,234
Other, . . ... ... . ... ....... 7 7
Support services: - .
Pupil .. ... . e 57,520 7,013 64,933
Instructiopal staff . . . . ... ... ... 150,818 26,261 383 177,462
Board of education. . . . ... ... ... 8,637 ' 8,637
Admipistration. . . . ... .. ..., 409,115 25,328 434,443
Fiseal. . . .. . ... o o o 146,062 2,557 148,619
Operations and maintenance. . . . . . . . 309,771 7,000 316,771
Pupil transportation . . . . . .. .. ... 213,932 213,932
Central . . . ... ... ... 9,359 5,960 15,359
Community services. . . ... ... ... 5,189 5,189
Extracurricular activities , . . . . ... .. 75,423 53,015 128,438
Facilitiesservices. . . . . . . .. .. ... 53,785 53,785
Debt service:
Principal retirement . . . . . ... ..... 70,000 70,000
Interest and fiscal charges. . . . ... ... 18,510 18.510
Total expenditures. . . . .. ....... 2,954,357 194335 91,067 127,163 1,583 3,368,509
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures . . . .. . .. 280,382 {18,6535) (23,757) (54,487) {675) 182,808
Other financing sources:
Proceedsofnotes. . . . . .. ... ... 53,785 53,785
Proceeds from sale of assets. . . . . .. 6,521 6,521
Total other financing sources . . . . . . . 6,521 _ 53,783 60,306
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over (under)
expenditures . . . . .. . ... ..., 186,903 (18,655) (23,757} (702) (675} 243,114
Fund balance, July 1. . . . . . . ... . ... 178,169 67,812 116,405 48,271 5,893 416,630
Decrease in reserve for inventory . . . . . . . (2,975) (2,975)
Fund balance, June 30. . . . . ... ... .. $462,097 $49.137 $92.648 $47,560 318 $656,789

THENOTES TO THE GENERAL PURIOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT

-5~
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LUCAS LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
RICHLAND COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCE
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types ___ Fund Type .
Total
Internal MNanexpendable (Memorandum
Enterprise Service _ _ Trust Quly)
Operating revenues: - : ]
Tuitionandfees . . . .. . ... .. .. ... $13,700 $18.700
Sales/charges forservices . . . ... ... -- 115,248 $242.214 . 357,462
Investmentearnings . . . .« v v v o b - - - . ) $772 772
Total gperating revenses . . . .. . .. .. - 133,948 242214 772 376,934
Operating expenses: -
Personal services . . . ... e e e e e - 73,382 73,882
Confractservices , . . .. ... ..... . 2,000 62,127 64,127
Materials and supplies. . . . . .. ... .. - 90,514 90,514
Depreciation. . . . . . .. ..o v oon - 3983 o 3,963
Claimsexpense . . .. ...... N e e 147,895 147,895
Other operating expenses. . . . . . . . .. .. - 1,193 1,655 ) 2,848
Total operating expenses. . . .. . .. .. . - 171,552 211,677 o 383,220
Operating income (loss) . . . <« - o o ot o v : - (37,604) 30,337 772 {6,295)
Nonoperating revenues: o .
Operatinggranis . . .. .. ... oo uen 23,332 ' 23,332
Federal commodities . . . . . ... ... .. . R 21 9.650
Interestevente. . . . - v v v x v s e a v - - 1,147 1,147
Other nonoperating reyenues ., . . .. . .. .. - _ S TE0 - 740
Total nonoperating revenues. . . . . . . - . . 34,129 760 ) . 34,889
Netincome (Joss) . « v o v o v v vmn - e ee (3.475) 31,297 M 28,594
Retained earnings/find balance (restated) B )
EYS 111 S P 13,982 165471 13,718 218,171
Retained earnings/fund balance at June 30. . . . $35 507 $I96!768 $14.490 246!762

THE NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT



LUCAS LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

RICHLAND COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from tuitionand fees . . . . . . . .

Cash received from sales/service charges . . . . . .
Cash payments for personal services. . . .. .. ...
Cash payments for contract services. . . . . .. . -
Cash payments supplies and materials . . . . . . .
Cash payments for claims expenses . . . .. .. ..
Cash payments for otherexpenses . . . . . .. ...

Net cash provided by (used in}

operating activities. . . . .. ... ... ... a0

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received from operating grants. . . . ... ..
Cash received from other noncapital financing
activities . . . . . . ..o i i omn

Net cash provided by noncapital

financing activities. . . . . ... .o .. -

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interestreceived. . . .. . .. .. ... e .

Net cash provided by investing activities, . . . . .

Net increase in
cash and cash equivalents . . ... .........

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year. . . .
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year. . . . . . .

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) . . . . . v oo v o w v -

Adjostments to reconeile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation . . . ... ... mmua.a.
Federal donated commodities. . . . ... .....
Interest reported as operating income. . . . . . ..
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Decrease in supplies inventory . . . . .. .. .. -
Increase in accounts receivable . . . . .. .. ..
Decrease inprepayments . . . . . . . .. .. v
Decrease in accounts payable. . . .. ... ...
Increase in accrued wages & benefits. . . . . . .
Increase in compensated absences payable , . . |
Decrease in pension obligation payable. . . . . .
Increase in claimspayable. . . . . .. .. .. ..
Increase in deferred revenue. . . . . . . o, N

Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities. . . . . . ... ... ... --

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1598

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type i
Total
Internal Nonexpendable (Memorandum
Enterprise Service Trust Coly)
$18,596 $18,596
115,248 $243,639 358,887
(71,386) (71,386)
(18,336) (62,127) (80,463)
(63,575) (63,575)
(145,660) {145,660)
(1,116} (1,116)
- (21,069) T 35,852 14,783
27,000 27,000
760 760
27,000 760 27,760
1,147 §772 _1919
1,147 772 1,919
7,078 _36,612 772 44,462
250838 . 202,534 13,718 241,340
$32,166 §239.146 314,450 $283,802
($37,604) $30,537 $772 ($6,295)
S~ -3,963 3,963
9,650 9,650
. (172) (772)
435 435
(104) (104
72 72
{6) (6)
1,227 1,227
2,396 2,396
(1,267} {1,267
3,890 3,850
169 1,425 1,594
. (521,069) $35.852 50 $14,783

THE NOTE$ TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF TEES STATEMENT



Lucas Local School District
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NOTE 1 - BESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT

The Lucas Local School District ("District") is a body politic and corporate established for the purpose
of exercising the rights and privileges conveyed fo it by the constitution and laws of the State of Chio.

The Dislrict ranks as the 579th largest by total enroliment among the 611 districts in the State. The
District operates under a [ocally-elected five-member Board form of government and provides
educational services as authorized by its charter and further mandated by state andfor federal
agencies. This Board controls the district’s four instructional/support facilities staffed by 33 classified
and 44 certificated fuil-time teaching personnel who provide services to 840 students and other
community members. o _ .

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The general-purpose financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepled standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The District also applies
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)} Statements and Interpretations issued on or before
November 30, 1989, to its proprietary activities provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB
proncuncements. The District's significant accounting policies are described helow.

A. Reporting Entity

The District's reporting entity has been defined in accordance with GASE Statement No. 14, "The
Financial Reporting Entity." Vvhen applying GASB Staiement No. 14, management has
considered all potential component units. The basic, but not the enly, criterion for including a
potential component unit within the reporting entity is the Board's ability to exercise significant
oversight respensibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial
interdependence. Other manifestations of the ability {o exercise oversight responsibility include,
but are ot limited to, the selection of the governing authority, the designation of management,
the ability to significantly influence operations, and the accountability for fiscal matters,

A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of public service.
Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the District and/or
its citizens. A third criterion Used {o evaluate potential compenent units for inclusion or exclusion
from the reporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether
the District is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. Based upon the application of these
criteria, the District has no component uniis. The followmg organ:zatlons are described due to
their relationship with the District:




Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

JOINT VENTURE WITHOUT EQUITY INTEREST:

North Central Ohio Computer Cooperative (NCOCC)

NCOCC is a joint venture among 21 school districts and 3 county boards of education. The joint
venture was formed for the purpose of applying medem technology with the aid of computers and
other elecironic equipment to the administrative and instructionat funclions armnong member
districts. Each of the governments of these scheols supports NCOCC based upon a per pupil,
charge dependent upon the software package ulilized. In the event of dissolution of the
organization, ail current members will share in net obligations or asset liquidations in a ratio
proportionate to their last twelve months financial contribution. NCOCC is govemed by a Board
of Directors consisting of superintendents of the members school districts. The degree of contyol
exercised by any school district is fimited to ifs representation on the Board. In accordance with
GASB Statement No, 14, the District does not have any equity interest in NCOCC as a residual
interest in the net rescurces of a joint veniure upon dissolution is not equivalent to an equity
interest. Financial information can be obtained from the treasurer for the Pioneer Career and
Technelogy JVSD, who serves as fiscal agent, at 27 Ryan Road, Shelby, Ohio 44875-0309.

JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION:

Ohio S¢hool Boards Association Workers' Compensation Group Rating Program

The District participates in a group rating plan for workers’ compensation as established under
section 4123,29 of the Ohio Revised Code. The Ohio School Board's Association (OSBA)
WCGRP was established through the OSBA as a group purchasing pool,

FPUBLIC ENTITY RISK POQL:
Ohio School Boards Association Workers' Compensation Group Rating Plan

The District participates in the Chio School Boards Association Workers’ Compensation Group
Rating Program (WCGRP), an insurance purchasing pool. The GRP's business and affairs are
conducted by a three member Board of Directors consisting of the President, the President-Elect
and the Immediate Past President of the OSBA. The Executive Director of the OSBA, or his
designee, serves as coordinator of the program. Each year, the pariicipating schoal districts pay
an enrcliment fee io the GRP {0 cover the costs of administering the program.

Fund Accounting

The District uses funds and account groups to report its financial position and the results of its
operations. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a seif-balancing set of accounts. An
account group, on the other hand, is a firancial reporiing device designed to provide
accountability for certain assets and fiabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do
not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. Fund accounting is designed to
demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions .
related to certain school district activities or functions. Funds are classified into three categories:
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each category is divided into separate fund types.

~-10 -



Lucas Local School District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {Continued)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental funds are those through which mest governmental functions of the District are
financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the District's expendable financial resources and
the related liabilities (except those accounted for in proprietary funds or the nonexpendable trust
fund) are accounted for through governmentai funds. The following are the Distiict's
governmental fund types: : ’

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to
account for alt financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
The general fund balance is available to the District for any purpose provided it is expended
or transferred according to the general laws of the State of Ohio.

Special Revenue Fynds - The special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds
of specific revenue sources (other than ‘expendable trusts, or major capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, genera! long-term debt principal, interest, and related
cosis. e e

Capifal Projects Funds - The capital projects funds are used fo account for financial
resources {o be used for the acquisition of construction of major capital facilities (other than
those financed by proprietary funds or the nonexpendable trust fund).

PROPRIETARY FUNDS3

Proprietary funds are used to account for the District's ongoing aciiviiies which are similar to
those often found in the private sector where the determination of net income is necessary or
useful to scund financial administration. The following are the District's proprietary fund types:

Enterprise  Funds - The enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are
financed and operated in a manner similar fo private businass enterprises—-where the intent
of the governing body is that the costs {expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods
or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges; or (b} where the goveming body has decided that periodic
determination of revenues earmed, expenses incurred, and/er net income is appropriate for
capital maintenance, public policy, management conirol, accountability, or other purposes.

internal Service Funds - The internal service funds are used to account for the financing of
goods and services provided by one department or agency ta other departments or agencies
of the district, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

-11-



Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1988

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. Thesse
include a nonexpendable frust fund, an expendable trust fund and an agency fund. The
nonexpendable trust fund is accounted for in the same manner as proprietary funds. The
expendable trusi fund is accounted for in the same manner as governmental funds. Agency
funds are custedial in nature (assets equal iabillties) and do not involve measurement of results
of operaticns. The agency fund is presented on a budget basis, with note disclosure, regarding
items which, in other fund types, would be subject to accrual. See Note 3 for an analysis of the
agency fund accruals which, in other fund types, would be recognized in the combined balance
sheet.

ACCOUNT GROUPS
To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related fo specific funds and those of general
government, and between long-term liabilities related to specific funds and those of general

nature, the following account groups are used.

General Fixed Assetls Account Graup - This group of accounts is established o account for
all fixed assets of the District, other than those accounted for in the proprietary or trust funds.

General L ong-Term Obligations Account Group - This group of accounts is established to

account for all long-term obligations of the District, other than those accounted for in the
proprietary funds or the nonexpendable trust fund.

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting freatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. All governmental funds and the expendable trust fund are accounted for
using a current financial resources measurement focus, With this measurement focus, only
current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating
statements of these funds present increases (revenues and other financing scurces) and
decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

All proprietary funds and the nonexpendable trust fund are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and ali liabilities
associated with the operations of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Proprietary fund
iype operating statements present increases (revenues)} and decreases (expenses) in net total
asseis. ) T

- 12 -



Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {Continued)

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed for govemmental funds and the expendable
trust fund. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they
become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period, which for
the District is sixty days after the June 30 year end. Revenues accrued at the end of the year
include taxes, (to the extent they are intended to finance the current fiscal year), interest, and
accounts (student fees and {uition). Current properiy faxes méasurable as of June 30, 1998, and
which are intended to finance fiscal 1899 operations, have been recorded as deferred revenues,
Deiingquent property taxes measurable and available {received within 80 days) are recognized as
revenue. In proprietary funds, unused donated commodities are reported as deferred revenue,

The District reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise
when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available” criteria for
recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by
the District before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the
recognition of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periads, when both revenue recognition
criteria are mel, or when the government has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for
deferred revenue is remaved from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

Expendiiures (decreases in net financial rescurces) are recognized in the period in which the
fund liability is incurred with the following exception: general long-term obligation principat and
interest are reported only when due; and costs of accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave
are reported as expenditures in the period in which they will be liquidated with available financial
resources rather than in the period earned by employees.

The proprietary funds and nonexpendable trust fund are accounted for on the accrual basis of
accounting, Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. The fair value of donated commedities
used during the year is reported in the operating statement as an expense and a like amount is
reported as donated commodities revenue.

Budgets

The District is required by state statute to adopt an annual appropriated cash basis budget for all
funds. The specific timetable for fiscal year 1998 is as follows:

1. Prior to January 15 of the preceding year, the Superintendent and Treasurer submit to the
Board of Education a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following
July 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing for all funds.

Public hearings are publicized and conducted fo obtain taxpavers' comments. The
expressed purpose of this budget document is to reflect the need for existing (or increased)
tax rates.

2. By no later than January 20, the board-adopted budget is filed with the Rlchland County
Budget Comemission for tax rate determination.

13-



Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1993

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {Continued)

3. Prior to March 15, the Board of Education accepis, by formal resolution, the tax rates as
determined by the Budget Commission and receives the Commission's Certificate of
Estimated Resources which states the projected revenue of each fund. Prior to June 30, the
District must revise its budget so that total contemplated expenditures from any fund during
the ensuing year will not exceed the amount stated in the Certificate of Estimated Resources.
The revised budget then serves as'a basis for the appropriation measure. Gn or about July
1, the Certificate is amended to Tnclude any unencumbered bafances from the preceding year
as reported by the District Treasurer. The Certificate may be further amended during the
year if projected increases or decreases in revenue are dentified by the Disirict Treasurer.
The amounis reported in the budgetary statement reflect the amounts set forth in the final
Amended Cerlificate isstied for fisca) year 1998.

4. By July 1, the annual appropriation resolution is legally enacted by the Board of Education
at the fund, function, and object level of expenditures, which are the legal levels of budgetary
control. (State statute permits a temporary appropriation to be effective until no later than
October 1 of each year.) Resoluion appropriations by fund must be within the estimated
resources as certified by the County Budget Commisslon and the total of expenditures and
encumbrances may not exceed the appropriation totals.

5. Any revisions that alter the total of any fund appropristion or alter total function appropriations
within a fund, or alter chject appropriations within functions must be approved by the Board
of Education.

6. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year
for all funds consistent with the general obligation bond indenture and other statutory
provisions. All departments/ffunctions and funds completed the year within the amount of
their legally authorized cash basis appropriation,

7. Appropriation amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Board of Education
through the year by supplemental appropriations which either reallocated or increased the
original appropriated amounts. All supplemental appropriations were legally enacted by the
Board during fiscal 1998 in the following amounts: '

Increase o Decrease
General Fund $ 36,430
Special Revenue Funds © 90,843
Enterprise Funds o - $(1,388)
Internal Service Funds (1,088)
Trust Funds (700)
Agency Fund 13,249

-4 -



Lucas Local School District
NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

8. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end., Encumbered appropriations are cartied
forward to the succeeding fiscal year and need not be reappropriated. Expenditures plus
encumbrances may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund, funciion and/or
object level, ' o

Encumbrance accounting is utitized with District funds in the normat course of operations, for
purchase orders and contract related expenditures. An encumbrance is a reserve on the
available spending authority due to commitment for a fuiure expenditure and does not
represent a liability. For governmental fund types, encumbrances outstanding at year end
appear as a reserve to the fund balance on a GAAP basis and as the equivalent of
expendituras on a non-GAAP budgetary basis in order o demonstrate legal compliance.
Note 15 proavides a reconciliation of the budgetary and GAAP basis of accounting and Note
12 discloses encumbrances outsianding for the enterprise funds at fiscal year end.

E. Cash and Investments

To improve ¢ash management, cash received by the District is pooled. Monies far all funds,
including proprietary funds, are maintained in this pool. Individual fund integrity is maintained
thraugh the District’s records. Each fund's interest in the pool is presented as “Equily in Poaled
Cash and Cash Equivalents” on the combined balance sheet.

During fiscal year 1998, investments were limited to investments in the State Asset Treasury
Reserve of Ohio (STAROIS). lavestments in STAROhHIo are reported at fair value which is
based on quoted market prices.

STARCHhIo is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer's Office which allows
governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. STARGHIG is not
registered with the SEC as an investment company, but does operate in a manner consistent with
Rule 2a7 of the lnvestment Company Act of 1840. Investments in STARGChio are valued at
STARGHIo’s share price which is the price the investment could be sold for ont June 30, 1988.

-15-



Lucas Local School District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY CF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {Continued)

Under existing Ohio Statutes all investment eamings are assigned to the generai fund unless
statutorily required 1o be credited to specific fund. By policy of the Board of Education,
investment aarnings are assigned to the general fund, the District Managed Aclivities special
revenue fund, the expendable trust fund, the nonexpendable trust fund, the Food Service
enterprise fund, and the Permanent Improvement capital projects fund. The following funds were
credited with more interest revenue than would have been received based upon their share of
the District’s investments during fiscal 1998;

Interest Interest Based interest Assigned
Actually Upon Share of By Other Funds
Received Investmenis
General Fund $ 59,7186 ' $ 31,846 $27.770
Special Revenue Fund o )
Diistrict Managed Activitles 811 378 233

For purposes of the combined siatement of cash flows and for presentation on the combined
balance sheet, investments of the cash management pool and invesiments with original
maturities of three months or less at the time they are purchased by the District are considered
to be cash equivalenis. Investmenis with an initial maturity of more than three months are
repcrted as investmenis.

An analysis of the Treasurer's investment account at year end is provided in Note 4.
F. Inventory

Inventories for all governmental funds are valued at cost (first-in/first-out method). The purchase
method is used to account for inventories. Under the purchase method, inventories are recorded
as expenditures when purchased; however, material amounts of inventories at pericd end are
reported as assets of the respective fund, which are equally offset by a fund balance resetve
which indicates they are unavailable for appropriation even though they are a component of
reported assets.

inventories of proprietary funds consist of donated food, purchased food, food service paper and
janitorial supplies and are valued at the lower of cost (first-in/first-out method) or market and
expensed when used rather than when purchased.

G. Fixed Assets and Depreciation
1. General Fixed Assets Account Group

General fixed assets are capitalized at cost or estimated historical cost. DPonated fixed
assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date donated. The District {ollows
the policy of not capitalizing assets with a cost of less than $500. No depreciation is
recognized for assets in the general fixed assets account group. The District has not
included infrasiructure in the general fixed assels account group. :

-18 -



Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1598

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

H.

2. Proprietary Funds

Equipment reflected in these funds are stated at historical cost or estimated historical cost
and updated for the cost of additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets
are recorded at their fair market values as of the date donated. Depreciation has been
provided, where apprepriate, on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset o o Life (years)

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-20
Intergovernmental Revenues

In governmental funds, entitlements and non-reimbursable grants (to the extent such grants and
entitlements refate to the current fiscal yvear) are recorded as receivables and revenue when
measurable and available. Reimbursement type grants are recorded as receivables and
revenues when the related expenditures are incurred. Other than commeodities, grants and
entitlements for proprietary fund operations are recognized as non-operating revenue when
measurable and eamed. The District currently participates in various state and federal programs
categorized as foliows:

Entitfements o - o

General Fund
State Foundation Program
State Property Tax Relief

Non-Reimbursable Granis

Special Revenue Funds

Education Management [nformation Systems
Title VI-B

Local Profassional Development

Title |

Title

Textbeok Materials/Subsidy

Capital Projects Funds
SchoolNet Plus

Propriefary Funds
Food Bistribution Program
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Lucas Local School District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

Reimbursable Grants

General Fund

Driver Education Reimbursement
School Bus Purchase Reimbursement
Vocational Education Travel/Salary

Proprietary Funds
National Schoal Lunch Program
Government Donated Commedities

Granis and entitlemenis amounted to approximately 44% of the District's operating revenue
during the 1998 fiscal year.

I. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences of the District consist of vacation leave and sick leave to the extent that
payment to the employee for these ahsences are attributable to services already rendered and
are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and the employee.

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 16, "Accounting for Compensated
Absences," a liability for vacation leave is accrued if a) the employees' rights to payment are
attributable to services already rendered; and b} it is probable thai the employer will compensate
the employees for the benefits through paid time off or other means, such as cash payment at
termination or retirement. A liability for severance is accrued using the vesting method; i.e., the
liability is based on the sick leave accumulated at the balance sheet date by those employees
who are currently eligible to receive termination (severance) payments, as well as those
employees expected to become eligible in the future. For purposes of establishing a liability for
severancs on employees axpected to become eligible to relite in the future, all employees age
fitty or greater with at least fen years of service and all employees with at least twenty years of
service regardless of their age were congidered expected to become eligible to retfire in
accordance with GASDB StatemeniNo. 16. .

The tota! liability for vacation and sick leave payments has been caiculated using pay rates in
effect at the balance sheet date, and reduced to the maximum payment allowed by labor contract
and/or siatute, plus any applicable additional salary related payments.

J. Contributed Capital

Contributed capital is recorded In proprietary funds that have received capital grants, or
contributions from developers, customers, or other funds. These assets are recorded at their fair
market vaiue on the date contributed. Depreciation on those assets acquired or constructed with
contributed resources is expensed and closed to unreserved retained earnings at year end.
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Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {Continued)

K.

Long-Term Obligations

{ ong-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources
have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other
long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available
financial resources is repored as a fund liability of a government fund. The remaining portion
of such obligations is reported in the general long-term obligations account group.

Under Ohio law, a debt retirement fund must be created and used for the payment of all debt
principal interest. GAAP requires the allocation of the debt liability among the general and the
general long-term chligations account group, with principal and interest payments on matured
general long-term debt being reported in the debt service fund. To comply with the GAAP
reporting requirements, the District’'s debt retirement fund has been split among the appropriate
funds and account group. Debt service fund rescurces used to pay both principal and interest
have aiso been allocated accordingly.

Long-term labilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for
in those funds.

Fund Equity

Reserved fund balances indicate that portion of fund equily which is not available for current
appropriation or is legally segregated for a specific use. Fund balances are reserved for
encumbrances, debi service, supplies inventory, principal endowment, prepayments, budgst
stahkilization, and tax revenue unavailable for appropriation. The unreserved peortions of fund
equity reflected for the governmental funds are available for use within the specific purposes of
those funds. The reserve for property tax revenue unavailable for apprepriation represents taxes
recognized as revenue under GAAP but not available for appropriations under State statute.

M. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the District may have numerous transactions between
funds. The maost significant include: '

1. Transfers of resources from one fund to another fund. The rescurces transferred are to be
expended for operations by the receiving fund and are recorded as operating transfers, with
the excention of agency funds, which dq not show transfers of resources as operating
transfers. The District made neo operating transfers in fiscal year 1898. '

2. Reimbursements from one fund to another are treated as expenditures/expenses in the
reimbursing fund and a reduction in expenditures/expenses in the reimbursed fund. Quasi-
external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.

3. Shert-term interfund loans and accrued interfund reimbursements and accrued operating
transfers are reflected as "interfund loans receivable or payable”. The District had no short-
term interfund loans receivable or payable at June 30, 1898.

49 -



Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

N.

4. Long-term interfund loans that will not be repaid within the next year are termed “advances”
and are shown as reservations of fund balances on the combined balance sheet for those
funds that report advances to other funds as assets because they are not spendable,
available rescurces. The District had no long-term advances receivable or payable at June
30, 1988, : : S

Resfricted Assets

Restricted assets in the general fund represent cash and cash equivalents set aside {0 establish
a budget stabilization reserve. This reserve is required by State statute and can be used only
after recelving approval from the State Superintendent of Public Instruction. During fiscal year
1998, the Disirict received a $19,060 refund frem the Bureau of Workers’ Compensation which
State siatute required to be included in this reserve. This refund is presented as “other lecal
revenue” in the accompanying financial statements. A fund balance reserve has also been
established. '

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management fo make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual resuits may differ from
those estimates.

Prepaid

Prepayments for governmental funds represent cash disbursementis which have cccurved and
are therefore not current expendable resources. These items are reported as fund assets on the
balance sheet using the aliocation method, which amortizes their cost over the pericds benefitting
from the advance paymeni. Al period end, because prepayment is not available to finance future
governmental fund expenditures, the fund balance is reserved by an amount equal to the camying
value of the asset.

Memorandum Only - Total Columns

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are capticned (Memorandum Cnly)
to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do
not present financial position, results of operations, or changes in financial position in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a
consclidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.
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Lucas Local Scheol District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTABILITY AND COMPLIANCE

1.

Change in Accounting Principle

GASB Statement Na. 31, "Acgounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for
External Investment Pogls," was implemented during fiscal 1998, In accordance with this
statement, investments held at June 30, 1988 with original maturities greater than one year are
stated at fair value. Fair value is estimated based on quoted market prices. The adoption of this
statement had no effect on fund balances/retained earnings as previcusly reported by the District
at June 30, 1997. ' ) - C

Prior Period Adjustments

The District overstated the estimated liability for claims payable at June 30, 1997, The effect of
this adjustment on retained eamings as previously reported at June 30, 1997 is as follows:

Internal Servicae

Retained earmings as previously reported - $ 153,878
Restatement for overstated ciaims payable 11,593
Restated retained earnings at June 30, 1997 $ 165,471

Deficit Fund Balances
Fund balance at June 30, 1998 included the following individual fund deficits:

Deficit Balance

Special Revenue Funds
Title | 3 (103)
Local Professional Development {8)

These funds complied with Ohio state law, which does not permit a cash basis deficit at year erd.

The deficit fund balances in the Title | and the Local Professional Development special revenue
funds are caused by accruing wage, benefit and pension obligations in accordance with GAAP.

recognized at June 30,
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Lucas Local School District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NQTE 3 - ACCQUNTABILITY AND COMPLIANCE - (Continued)
4. Agency Funds

The following are accruals for the agency funds, which, in another fund type, would be recognized
in the combined balance sheet:

ASSETS o
Accounts Receivable 3 1,411
LIABILITIES .
Accrued wages and benefits 717
Accounts payable 163
Deferred revenue 500
Pension cbligation payable 256

NOTE 4 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The District maintains a cash and investment pocl used by all funds. Each fund type's portion of this
pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents”.
Statutes require the classification of monies held by the District into three categories:

Active deposits are public deposifs necessary to meet current demands on the treasury. Such
monies must be maintained either as cash in the District treasury, in commercial accounts payable
or withdrawable on demand, including negot[able order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money
market deposit accounts., -

Inactive deposits are public deposits the Board of Education has identified as not required for use
within the current two year period of designation of depositories. Inactive deposits must either be
evidenced by certificates of depaosit maturing not later than the end of the current period of
designation of depositories, or by savings or deposit accounts including, but not timited 1o, passbook
accounts.

Interim deposits are deposits of interitm monies. Interim monies are those monies which arg not
needed for immediate use but which will be needed before the end of the current period of
designation of depositories. Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates of deposit
maturing not more than cne year from the date of deposﬂ or by savmgs accounts, including passbook
accounts.

Protection of the District's deposits is provided by the Federal Depasit insurance Corporation {(FDIC),
by eligible securities pledged by the financial institution as security far repayment, by surety company
bonds depostied with the Treasurer by the financial institution or by a single collateral pool established
by the financial institution to secure the repayment of all public monies deposited with the institution.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NOTE 4 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Interim maonies may be invested or deposited in the following securities:

1.

United States treasury notes, bills, bonds, or any other obligation or security issued by the
United States treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal or interest by the
United States; R ’ ’

Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other chligations or securities issued by any federal
government agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the federal naticnal
mortgage association, federal home loan bank, federal farm credit bank, federal home [oan
mortgage corporation, government national morigage association, and student loan
marketing association. All federal agency securities shall be direct issuances of federal
government agencies cor instrumentalities;

Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market value
of the secuiities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value of the
agreement by at least two percent and be marked to market daily, and that the term of the
agreement must not exceed thirty days;

Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohig;

No-load money market mutuat funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in division
(1) or (2) of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided
that investments in securities described in this division are made only through eligible
institutions; o

The State Treasury Asset Reserve of Qhio (STAROhio);

Certain bankers’ acceptances and commercial paper notes for a period not to exceed one
hundred and eighty days in an amount not to exceed twenty-five percent of the interim
monies available for investment at any one time; and

Under limited circumstances, corporate debt interests rated in either of the two highest rating
classifications by at [east two nationally recognized rating agencies.

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements and
derivatives are prohibited, The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose cf arbifrage, the use of
leverage and short selling are also prohibited. An investment must mature within five years from the
date of purchase unless matched to a specific obligation or debi of the Bistrict, and must be
purchased with the expectation that it will be held to maturity. Investments may only be made through
specified dealers and institutions, Paymen{ for investments may be made only upon delivery of the
securities representing the investments o the Treasurer or gualified trustee or, if the securities are

not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the custodian.
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NOTE 4 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Cash on hand: At fiscal year end, the District had $50 in undeposited cash on hand which is included
on the combined balance sheet of the District as part of "Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash
Equivalents." .

The following information classifies deposits and investments by categories of risk as defined in

GASB Statement No. 3, "Deposits with Fmggclgi Institutions, !nveg;m 1§ gngﬁevgrse Repurchase
Agreements.' _

Deposits: At year end, the carrying amount of the District's depOSIts was $217,690 and the bank
balance was $270,699. Of the bank balance:

Category 1 - $170,699 was covered by federal deposrtory lnsurance or by collaterai held by
the District in the District’'s name. -

Category 3 - $100,000 was uninsured and unregistered because it was secured by coliateral
held by third party trustees pursuant to section 135,181, Ohia Revised Code, in collateralized
pools securing all public funds on deposit with specific depository institutions; these securities
not being in the name of the District. Although all State statutory requirements for the deposit
of money had been followed, non-compliance with federal requirements would potentially
subject the District to a successful claim by the FDIC.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposits in excess of all deposits not
covered by federal depository insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as coliateral are
obligations of the United States and its agencies, obligations of the State of Chio and its
municipalities, and obligations of the other states.

Obligations pledged {o secure deposits must be delivered to a bank other than the insfitution in which
the deposit is made. Written custodial agreements are required.

Investments: Investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the
entity at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or securities held
by the District, Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities
are held by the counterparty’s frust department or agent in the District's name. Category 3 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty or by
its trust department, but not in the District’s name.

The District had an investment of $942,224 in STAROhio. STAROhio is not categorized because it
is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

The classification of cash and cash equivalents and invesiments on the combined batance sheet is

hased on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9, "Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and
Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Gavernmenia! ities That  Proprietary Fund Accounting.”
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NOTE 4 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

A reconciliation between the classifications of pooled cash and cash equivalents on the combined
halance sheet and the classifications of deposits and investments presented above per GASB
Statement No. 3 is as follows:

Cash and Gash

Equivalents/
Deposits [nvestments
GASB Statement 9 " $ 1,159,964 $ 0
Investments:
STAROhio (942,224) 942 224
Cash on hand {50y _
GASB Statement 3 $ 217,690 $ 942224

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied and assessad on a calendar year basis. Distributions from the second half
of the calendar year occur in a new fiscal year and are intended to finance the operations of that year.
Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility and tangible (used in business)
property located in the District. Real properly taxes and public utility taxes are levied after November
1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1, the lien date. Assessed vaiues are
established by State law at 35% of appraised market value.

Public utility property taxes are assessed on tangible personal property, as well as land and
improvements. Real property is assessed at 35% of market value and personal properly is assessed
at 100% of market value except for the personal property of rural electric companies which is
assessed 50% of market and railroads which are assessed al 20%.

Tangible personal property texes attach as 2 lien and are levied on January 1 of the current year.

Tangible personal property assessments are 25% of trug value. The assessed value upon which the
1997 taxes were collected was $45,072,620. Agriculiural/residential and public utility/minerals real
estate represented 60.30% or $27,179.970 of this total; commercial & industrial real estate
represented 2.72% or $1,223,380 of this toial, public utlity tangible represented 34.40% or
315,504,480 of this total and general tangible property represented 2.58% or $1,164,780 of this total.
The voted general tax rate at the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 was $45.30 per $1,000.00 of
assessed valuation for operations and $1.50 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation for debt retirerment.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. If_paid annually, payment is due
December 31; if paid semi-annually, the first payment is due December 31 with the remainder payable
by June 20. '

The District receives property taxes from Richland and Ashland Counties. The respective County
Treasurars collect property taxes on behalf of the District. The respective County Auditors periodically
remit to the District its portion of the taxes collected. These tax "advances" are based on statutory
cash flow collection rates. Final "seftlements” are made each February and August.
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NOTE 5 - PROPERTY TAXES - (Continued)

Accrued property taxes receivable represent delinquent taxes outstanding and real property, personal
property and public ulility taxes which became measurable as of June 30, 1998. Although total
property tax collections for the next fiscal year are measurable, they are not (exclusive of advances)
intended to finance current year aperations. The net receivable (total receivable less amount
available intended to finance the current year) is therefore cffset by a credit to deferred revenue. The
amount available as an advance, and recorded as revenue, at June 30, 1998, was $38,133 in the
general fund and $1,572 in the debt service fund.

Taxes available for advance and recognized as revenue but not received by the District prior to June
30, 1998, are reflecied as a reservation of fund balance for future appropriations. The District is
prehibited, by law, from appropriating this revenue In accordance with ORC Section §705.35, since
an advance of revenue was not requested or received prior to the fiscal year end.

NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES
Receivables at June 30, 1998 consisted of taxes, accounts, accrued interest and all granis and
eniitlements intended to finance fiscal year 1998. Receivables are considered collectible in full due
to the ability to foreclose for the nonpayment of taxes and the stable condition of State programs and
the current year guarantee of federal funds.

A summary of the principal items of receivables follows:

Amounts
General Fund L
Taxes - current and delinquent $1,670,990
Accounis 4 536
Accrued Interest 1,929
Debt Service Fund .
Taxes - current and delinquent 88,807
Capital Projects Fund _ )
Accounts 4,525
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NOTE 7 - FIXED ASSETS

A summary of the changes in the general fixed assets account group during the fiscal year follows:

Balance _ Balance
July 1, 1997 7 Additions Deletions ~ June 30, 1898
Land / improvements $ 48,875 g 0 $ a $ 48,875
Buildings / improvements 2,991,131 ’ o 0 2,881,131
Furniture / equipment 507,050 © 120,558 1,835 ' 625,973
Vehicles 451,302 ) o 23,723 427579
Total $ 3,998,358 $ 120,558 $ 25,358 $ 4,093,558

There was no significant construction in progress at June 30, 1998.

A summary of the proprietary fixed assets at June 30, 1998 follows:

Furniture and equipment $ 78,028
Less: accumulated depreciation (60,678)
Net fixed assets $ 18,350

NOTE 8 - CHANGES IN CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Changes in contributed capital for the year ended June 30, 1988 are summarized by source as

follows:
Food Service
Contributed capital, July 1, 1997 % 1,500
Current contributions - 0
Contributed capital, June 30, 1998  $1,500

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The District has two long-term debt issues oufstanding at June 30, 1298. These debt issues
represent a general obligation bond and an energy conservation note. .

During fiscal year 1998, the District issued a $53,785 energy conservation note te provide for energy
improvements to various District buildings. The primary source of repayment of this note is through
energy savings as a result of the improvements. This note bears an interast rate of 4.75% and
matures on September 1, 2007. . S :

Payments of principal and interest relating to these liabilities are recorded as expenditures_in the debt
service fund. Unmatured obligations are accounted for in the general long-term obligations account
group. - - ,
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - Centinued

The foliowing is a description of the District's general obligation bond and energy conservation note
cutstanding as of June 30, 1998: . _

Interest Maturity Outstanding issued Retired In Ouistanding
Rate Date July 1,1997 ~ In 1998 1998 June 30, 1998
General obligation
bond payable 5.50% 12/01/01 $350,000 . $ - $(70,000) $280,000
Energy conservation
note payable 4.75% 09/01/07 0 53,785 - 53,785
$350,000 $53,785 $(70,000) $333,785

B. The following is a summary of the District’s future annual debt service requirements to maturity
for the general ohligation bond and the energy conservation note:

Fiscal Year Principal on Interest on
Ending Bond/Note Bond/Note ~~ Total _
1999 $ 75379 $ 15,837 $ 91,316
2000 75,379 11,828 - 87,207
2001 75,379 7,719 83,098
2002 75,379 3,610 78,989
2003 5,379 1,428 5,805
2004 - 2008 26,890 3,244 30,134
Totai $ 333,785 S 43,764 $ 377,548

C. During the year ended June 30, 1998, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in the
general long-term abligations account group. Compensated absences are presented net of actual
increases and decreases due to the practicality of determining these values. Compensated
absences and pension obligations will be paid from the fund in which the employee is paid.

General obligaticn bond
Compensated absences
Pension cbligation payable
Energy conservation note

Total

Balance . Balance
July 1, 1997 increase _ F._)_eg_r;_ea_se_ _ June__S_D,_j__QQSV
$ 350,000 $ ] 3 (70,000) $ 280,000
--132,392 o . (11,139) 121,253
46,054 44718 (46,054) 44718
0 53,785 0 53,785
$ 528,446 $ 98,503. $(127,193) $ 489,756
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - Continued
D. Legal Debt Margin

The Ohic Revised Code provides that voted net general obligation debt of the District shall never
exceed 8% of the total assessed valuation of the District. The code further provides that unvoted
indebtedness shall not exceed 1/10 of 1% of the property valuation of the District. The effects
of these debt limitations at June 30, 1998 are a voted debt margin of $3,868,184 (including
available funds of $92,648) and an unvoted debt margin of $45,073,

NOTE 10 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The criteria for determining vested vacation and sick leave components are derived from negotiated
agreements and State laws. Classified employees eain five to twenty days of vacation per year,
depending upon length of service. Accurulated unused vacation time is paid to classified employses
upon termination of employment. Adrninistraters who are contracted to work 260 days in a year are
given fifteen to twenty days of vacation per year by contract. Any unused vacation days at the end
of the contract are forfeited. The only exception is the Superintendent who can carry over up to ten
days at the end of his centract, and the Treasurer who can carry over up to five days at the end of
her contract. Teachers do not earn vacation time.

Administrators, teachers, and classified employees earn sick leave at a rate of cne and one-fourth
days per month. Sick leave may be accumulated up to 220 days. Upon retirement, payment is made
to employees with ten or more years of service at the District {or twenty-five percent of the total sick
leave accumulation with @ maximum of 40 days payment.

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT
1. Property, Fleet, and Liabiity Insurance

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to toris, theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During fiscal year
1998, the District retained property insurance coverage in the blanket amount of $12,800,160 with
Q0% coinsurance, replacement cast endorsement and a $1,000 deductible. Bojler and machinery
coverage is also provided with blanket coverage in the amount of $5,757,190 with a $1,000
deductible. The District also has inland marine floaiers in the amount of $83,288 with a $100
deductible for coverage of audlo wsual eqmpment two way radios, iractors, musical mstruments
and uniforms.

Vehicles are covered by a policy through Nationwide/Wausau Insurance Companies which
provides for a $50 deductible for comprehensive and a $250 deductible for collisien. Vehicle
liability has a $2,000,000 combined single limit of liability.

Nationwide/Mausau Insurance Companies also provide general liahility coverage with a
$2,000,000 single ccrurrence limit and an aggregate of $5,000,000 with no deductible.
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NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT - (Continued)

2.

Employee Dishonesty Bonds

The District carries employee dishenesty bonds for the Treasurer, Superintendent, and Board
President in the amount of $20,000. Also an employee blanket dishonesty bond in the amount
of $5,000 is provided to cover all other employees of the District.

Worker's Compensation

The District participates in the Ohio School Boards Association Workers' Compensation Group
Rating Program {GRP), an insurance purchasing pool {see Note 2.A.). The GRP’s husiness and
affairs are conducted by a three member board of directors consisting of the President, the
President-Elect and the immediate Past President of the Ohio School Boards Association. The
Executive Direcior of the OSBA, or his designee, serves as coordinator of the program. Each
year, the participating schaal disfricts pay an enrallment fee to the GRP to caver the costs of
administering the program.

The intent of the GRP is to achieve the benefit of a reduced premium for the District by virue of
its grouping and representation with other participants in the GRP. The worker's compensation
experience of the participating school districts is calculated as one experience and a comrmnen
premium rate is applied to all schooi districts in the GRP. Each participant will then either receive
money fram or be required to contribute to the "Equity Pooling Fund”. This "equity pooling”
arrangement insures that each paricipant shares equally in the overall performance of the GRP.
Participation in the GRP Is limited to school districts that can meet the GRP’s selection criteria.
The firm of Gates McDonald & Co. provides administrative, cost control, and actuarial services
to the GRP.

Employee Group Life, Medical, Dental, and Vision Insufanéé

The District provides life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment insurance o all
regular contracted employees _through Anthem Benefit Administrators Inc. in the following
amounts: full-time employees $25,000, administrators $50,000, and pari-time grandfathered
employees $10,000.

The District has elected to provide a comprehensive medical benefits package to the employees through a
self-insured program. The District maintains a self-insured internal service fund to account for the finances
of its uninsured risks of loss in this program. This package provides a comprehensive medical plan with a
$275 single and $375 family deductible (3100 single and $200 family deductibles for administrators). A third
party administrator, Arthem Benefits Administrators Inc., located in Columbus, Ohio, reviews all claims for
the medical plan which are then paid by the District. The District purchases stop-loss coverage of $20,000
per individual and an aggregate limit of $208,212 from Cox Insurance Group. The total monthiy premium paid
into the internal service fund for the medical plan is $158 for single coverage and $390 for family coverage
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NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT - {(Continued}

which is paid out of the same fund that pays the satary for the employee. The District's amounts
are capped by negotliated union coniracts and cannot be increased except ihroughout
negotiations. The employee monthly portion of the premium is $16 for single coverage and $39
for family coverage which is withheld from their biweekly payroll. The employees are responsible
for payment of all claim amounts in excess of the employer capped amounis.

The District provides dental coverage for its employess on a self-insured basis through Anthem
Benefits Administrators Inc. The total monthly premium is $28 for single and family coverage.
This premium is paid by the District. Like the medical premium, this amount is also capped by
negotiated union contracts and cannot be raised except through negotiated agreement. The
employees are respansible for payment of all claim amounts in excess of the employer capped
amounts.

The above employee portions of premiums for medical and dental insurance are for full-time
employees. Grandfathered part-time emplovees also have medical and dental insurance
benefits.

The claims liability of $22,016 reported in the fund at June 30, 1998, is based on the requirements
of GASB Statement No. 10, "Agcounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related
Insurance Issues." as amended by GASB Statement No. 30, "Risk Financing Omnibus," which
requires that a liability for unpaid claims costs, including estimates of costs relating {o incurred
hut not reported claims, be accrued at the estimated ultimate cost of setiling the claims. Changes
in claims activity for the past two fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Beginning Of
. _Year _______ Claims Payments _ End of Year
1988 $ 18,126 $ 147,895 $ {144 005) 322,018
1697 $ 18,757 $ 103,846 $(104,477) 318,126
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NOQTE 12 - SEGMENT INFORMATION - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The District maintains three enterprise funds to account for the operations of food service, uniform
school supplies and farm operations. The table below reflects, in a summarized format, the more
significant financial data relating {o the enterprise funds of the District as of and for the year ended
June 30, 1998. . .

Food Uniform School Rotary
Service Supplies Farm Total
Operating revenue $113,043 $18,700 $2,205 $133,548
Operating expenseas o : T .-
before depreciation 150,101 16,684 804 167,589
Depreciation 3,963 e - - 3,863
Operating income (loss) {(41,021) 2,016 1,401 (37,804)
Operating grants 23,332 . — e . 23,332
Net income (loss) (6,892) ) 2,016 © 1,401 (3,475)
Net working capital 8,201 8,458 1,998 18,657
Total assets 44,984 8,458 . 2157 - 55,599
Total liabilities 18,433 - 158 © 18,592
Contributed capital 1,500 -— B 1,500
Total equity 26,551 © 8,458 < 1,988 37.007
Encumbrances : -
at 06/30/98 _ 100 —— 345 445

NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
A. School Emplioyees Retirement System

The District contributes to the School Employees Retirement System of Ohic {(SERS), a cost-
sharing multiple employer public employes retirement system administered by the School
Employees Retirement Board. SERS provides basic retirement benefits, disability, surviver, and
heatith care benefits based on eligible service credit to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are
established by Chapter 3309 of the Ohio Revised Code. SERS issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
SERS. The report may be obtained by writing to the School Employees Retirement System, 45
North Fourth Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3634. '
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NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - Continued
A. School Employees Retirement System - continued

Plan members are required to coniribute 9 percent of their annuat covered salary and the District
is required to contribute 14 percent for 1998; 9.71 percent was the portion to fund pension
obligations. The contribution rates are not determined actuarially, but are established by the
School Employees Retirement Board within the rates aflowed by Staie statute. The adequacy
of the contribution rates is determined annually. The District's required coniributions for pension
obligations to SERS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1988, 1997, and 1996 were $77,578,
$97,143, and $83,868, respectively; 36,1 percent has been contributed for fiscal year 1998 and
100 percent for the fiscal years 1897 and 1996, $49,626, represefifing the unpaid contribution
for fiscal year 1998, is recorded as a llabilify within the respective funds and the generat long-term
obligations account group. i ' '

2. State Teachers Retirement System

The District coniribules to the Siate Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS), a cosi-sharing
multiple employer public employee retirement system administered by the State Teachers
Retirement Board. STRS provides basic retirement benefits, disability, survivor, and health care
benefits based on eligible service credit to members and beneficiaries, Benefits are established
by Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code. STRS issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statemenis and required supplementary information for STRS. The report may
be obtained by writing to the State Teachers Retirement System, 275 East Broad Sireet,
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3771. ' ' ’ -

Plan members are reguired to contribute 9.3 percent of their annual covered salary and the
District is required to contribute 14 percent; 10.5 percent was the portion used to fund pension
obligations. Contribution rates are established by the State Teachers Retirement Board, upon
recommendation of its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximurn rates of 10 percent
for members and 14 percent for employers., The District's required contributions for pension
obligations to STRS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1998, 1897, and 1996 were $214,012,
$222 363, and $188,878, respectively; 83.4 percent has been contributed for fiscal year 1998 and
100 percent for the fiscal years 1997 and 1998. $35,524, representing the unpaid contribution
for fiscal year 1998, is recorded as a lizbility within the respective funds. :

NOTE 14 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The District provides comprehensive health care benefits to retired teachers and their dependents
through the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS), and to retired non-certified employees and
their dependenis through the School Employees Retirement Systemn (SERS). Benefits include
hospitalization, physicians’ fees, prescription drugs, and reimbursement of monthly Medicare
premiums. Beneiit provisions and the chiigations to contribute are established by the Systems based
on authority granted by State statute. Both systems are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.

-33-



Lucas Local School District

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-

June 30, 1998

NOTE 14 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

The State Teachers Retiremeni Board has statutory authority over how much, if any, of the health
care costs will be absorbed by STRS. Most beneflt recipients pay a portion of the health care cost
in the form of a monthly premium. By Ohio law, the cost of coverage paid from STRS funds shall be
included in the employer contribution rate, currently 14 percent of covered payroll. Through June 30,
1997, the Board allocated employer contributions equal to two percent of covered payrol! to the Health
Care Reserve Fund. Beginning July 1, 1897, this allocation was increased ic 3.5 percent. For the
District, this amount equaled $53,526 during fiscal 1998.

STRS pays health care benefits from the Health Care Reserve Fund. The balance in the Fund was
$1.860 billion at June 30, 1997. For the year ended June 30, 1987, net health care costs paid by
STRS were $182.077 million and STRS had 88,718 eligible benefit recipients.

For SERS, coverage is made available to service retirees with ten or more years of qualifying service
credit, and disability and survivor benefit recipients. Members refiring on or after August 1, 1989, with
less than twenty-five years of service credit must pay a portion of their premium for health care. The
portion is based on years of service up to a maximum of 75 percent of the premium.

For this fiscal year, employer contributions o fund heaith care benefits were 4.21 percent of covered
payroll, an increase from 3.5 percent for fiscal year 1897, In addition, SERS levies a surcharge to
fund health care benefits equal to 14 percent of the difference between a minimum pay and the
member's pay, pro-rated for partial service credit. For fiscal year 1998, the minimum pay has been
established at $12,400. The surcharge, added to the unallocated portion of the 14 percent employer
contribution rate, provides for maintenance of the asset target level for the health care fund.

The target level for the health care reserve is 125 percent of annual health care expenses. Expenses
for health care at June 30, 1997, were $97.428 millicn and the farget level was $121.8 million. At
June 30, 1897 SERS had net assets available for payment of health care benefits of $148.4 million.
SERS has approximately 48,200 participants currently receiving health care benefits. For the
District, the amount {o fund health care benefits, including surcharge, equaled $40,723 during the
1998 fiscal year.

NOTE 15 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

While reporting financial position, resulis of operations, and changes in fund balance isdoneona
GAAP basis, the budgetary basis, as provided by law, is based upon accountlng for certain
transactions on a hasis of cash receipts and disbursements.

The Combined Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and
Actual - All Governmental Fund Types is presented on the budgetary basis to provide a meaningful
comparison of actual results with the budget. The major dlfferences between the budget basis and
the GAAP basis are that!

(a) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when susceptible
to accrual (GAAP basis);

{b) Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when the liability is
incurred (GAAP basis),
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NOTE 15 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - Continued

() In order to determine compliance with Ohio law, and to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of an expenditure (budget basis)
as opposed to a reservation of fund balance for governmental funds (GAAP basis).

The adjustments necessary to convert the restllts of operations for the year on the budget basis to
the GAAP basis for the governmental funds are as follows:

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over {(Under) Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Governmental Fund Types

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Project
Budget basis $161,586 5(26,592) ${23,597) $(43,343)
Net adjustment for
revenue accruals 33,672 249 {159) 4. 525
Net adjustment for
expenditure accruals {18,867) (478) (1) -
Net adjustment for other o
financing sources (uses) (19,060) _— = -
Encumbrances :
(budget basis) 129,572 8.166 - . _38116
GAAP basis $286,903 $(18633) _§523,75?} 5 (702

NOTE 16 - CONTINGENCIES
A. Grants

The District receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal, state and local
agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement of {unds received under these programs
generally requires compliance with ferms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and
is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits
could become a liability of the general fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion
of management, any such disaflowed claims will nof have a material effect on any of the financial
statements of the individual fund types included herein or on the overall financiai position of the
District at June 30, 1988. '

B. Litigation

The District is not currently a party to any legal proceedings.
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Lucas LLocal School District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NOTE 16 - CONTINGENCIES - (Continued)
C. State School Funding Decision

On March 24, 1697, the Ohio Supreme Court rendered a decision declaring certain portions of
the QOhio school funding plan unconstitutional. The Court stayed the effect of its ruling for one
vear to allow the State's legislature to design a plan to remedy the perceived defects in the
system. Declared unconstitutional was the State’s "schoot foundation program®, which provides
significant amounts of monetary support fo the District. During the fiscal year ended June 30,
1998, the District received $1,456,220 of total school foundation support.

Since the Supreme Court ruling, numerous pieces of legislation have been passed by the State
legislature in an attempt to address the issues identified by the Court. The Court of Common
Pleas in Perry County is currenily reviewing the new laws to determine whether they are
constitutional under the “thorough and efficient’ clause of the Chio Constitution. According to the
Ohio attorney general's office, a decision is expected from the Perry County Court sometime in
early calendar 1999; either party then has the right to appeal that decision directly to the Ohio
Supreme Court. Any decision made by the Court of Common Pleas is likely to be appealed.

As of the date of these general purpose financial statements, the District estimates that it will
receive $166,660 more in State funding under this Program.

NOTE 17 - GROUP PURCHASING POOL

The District is a member of the Metropalitan Educational Council (MEC) purchasing group. The
following items are purchased through this group discount program; custodial products, food service
products, audio visual bulbs, and certain paper products. The MEC also provides a Self-Help Gas
Program where members save significant amounts on natural gas purchases.
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Lucas Local School District
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (unaudited)

June 30, 1998

YEAR 2000 iISSUE

The Year 2000 issus is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data processing systems and
other equipment that may adversely affect the District's operations as early as fiscal year 1998.

The District has completed an inventory of computer systems and other equipment necessary to
conducting District operations and has identified such systerns as being financial reporting, payroll
and employee benefits, and educational statistics reporting {(through the Stale's Education
Management and Information System (EMIS).

The District uses the State of Ohio Uniform School Accounting System scftware for its financial
reporting, the State of Chio Uniform School Payroll System software for its payroll and employee
benefits and the State of Ohioc Equipment Inventory System for its fixed assets accounting. The State
is responsible for remediating these systems. The District has been assured by the State of Ohio that
all software programs currently used by the District will be Year 2000 compliant by December 31,
1998. -

The Stiate of Ohic distributes a substantial sum of money to the District in the form of basic state aid
*school foundation™ and federal and state grant paymenis. Further, the State processes a significant
amount of financial and non-financial information about the District through EMIS. The State is
responsible for remediating these systems. ' '

The District currently is assessing the changes needed in the power systems. Systems may have
to be remediated, tested, and validated. The District has hired an employee who will be responsible
for the assessment, remediation, purchases, and testing and validation. The farget date for
implementation is expected to be the summer of 1999, As this systems will be remediated by in-
house staff, there are no ouiside contracted amounts for this project at June 30, 1998,

Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related
remediation efforts will not be fuily determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management
cannot assure that the District is or will be Year 2000 ready, that the District’'s remediation efforts will
be successiul in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the District does business will be year
2000 ready.
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1540 West Market Street Certified Public Accountants 29550 Detroit Road
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Telephonc: 330/867-7350 Telephane: 440/871-8288
Fax: 330/867-8866 Fax: 440/871-6452

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of General Purpose Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Education
Lucas Local School District
Lucas, Ohic 44843

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Lucas Locat Schoot District (the District), as
of and for the year ended June 30, 1998 and have issued our report thereon dated December 2, 1959, We
conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Compliance o e

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Lucas Local School District's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and materal effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion cn compliance with those provisions was not an
abjective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompiiance that are reguired to be reperted under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting L

In plannhing and performing our audit, we considered Lucas Local School District's intemal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinicn on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration, of
the internal control over financial reperting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financiai statements being audited may occur
and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. We noted no matters invelving the internal contro! over financial reporting and its operation that we
consider to be material weaknesses.

An independently owned and operated professinnal corporatian member of Moore Stephens North America, Tnc. — metnbers in prinetpal cities throughout North Amerlca.
Moote Stephens North America, Inc. is # member of Moore Stepbens Internarional Limited — members in principal citles throughout the world.
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Page 2
However, we noted a certain matter involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported
to management of the District, in a separate letter dated December 2, 1998.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Education, management, federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and the Auditor of State and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. :

oane Steptiens pple

Akron, Ohio
December 2, 19599
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Lucas Local School District - Richland County

Elected Officials
as of June 30, 1999

Elected Officials Title Term of Office Surety Amount Period
Board of Education
Mary Stotis President 01/01/96 ~1 2/31/99 (A} — $20,000 11097 - 1100
Michael Fanello Vice President 01/01/96 - 12/31/99 None o
Linda Zickefoose Member 01/01/98 - 12/31/01 None
R. Steve Grover Member 01/04/88 - 12/31/01 None
John Trumpower Member 01/01/98 ~ 12/31/01 None

Statutory Legal Counsel

James J. Mayer

Richland County Prosecuting Attorney

38 South Park Street

Mansfield, Ohio 44902

(A) Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company



Lucas Local School District - Richland County
Administrative Personnel
as of June 30, 1999

Title Term of Office Surety  Amount Perfod
ar Contract Period
Tregsurer
Julte Henke QOrganizational Meeting 1996 to {A) $25,000 (B)

Superintendent
Robert Delane

Organizational Meeting January 2000 S

8/1/96 - 7/31/01 (A) $20,000

(A) Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company

(B} Covers term of office

- i -
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[ucas Local School District — Richland County
Index of Funds
As of June 30, 1999

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES:

General Fund

Special Revenue Fund Types:

Public School Support Fund

Other Grant Fund

Venture Capital Grant

District Managed Student Activity Fund

Professional Development Fund

Talented and Gifted Grant

Management Information Systems Fund

Title VI-B Special Education: Assistance to States for
Handicapped Children Fund

Chapter | — Financial Assistance to Meet Special Educationat Needs
Of Disadvantaged Children Fund

Chapter Il — Consclidation of Federal Programs for Elementary and
Secondary Education Fund

Debt Service Fund Types:

Beond Retirement Fund

Capital Projects Fund Types: -

Permanent lmproverment Fund
School Net Plus Fund
Emergency Repalrs Grant

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE:
Enterprise Fund Types: e

Food Service Fund
Uniform School Supplies Fund
Farm Service Fund

Internal Service Fund Type: .

Special Rotary Fund
Self-Insurance Fund

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES:
Trust and Agency Fund Types:

Expendable Trust;

Special Trust Fund

Nan Expendable Trust:

Endowment Fund

Agency:

District Agency
Student Managed Activity Fund
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MOORE STEPHENS APPLE

1540 West Market Strect Certified Public Accountants 29550 Derroit Ruad
Akron, Ohio 44313 - Cleveland, Chio 44145
Telephone: 330/867.7350 Telephone: $40/871-8288
Fax: 330/867-8860 Fax: 440/871-6452

Report of Independent Auditors

Board of Education
Lucas Local School District
Lucas, Chio 44843

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the Lucas Laocal School District as
of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of
the Lucas Local School District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general
purpese financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier Generat of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance ahout
whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement presentation. VWe believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our apinion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal respects,
the financial position of the Lucas Local School District as of June 30, 1899 and the results of its cperations and
cash flows of its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust fund for the year then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Audiling Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 2, 1999
on our consideration of the Lucas LLocal School District's internal control gver financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of taws, regulations, contracts and grants.

Wea did not audit the supplemental information dealing with Year 2000 as listed in the tahle of contents and
therefore express no opinion thereon.

Hoone Steptens »ple

Akron, Ohio
December 2, 1999

M An independenty owned and operated professiopal corporation meptber of Muore Stephens North America, Inc. — members in principal citles throughout North Ametica,
S Moore Siephens North America, Ing. is 2 member of Moore Stephens International Limited — members in principal cities throughout the workd
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LUCAS LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT ' ’ C
RICHLAND COUNTY, OHIC
COMBINED STATEMENT QF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Fiduciary
Governmental Fund Types ____Fund Type
Total
Special Debt Capital Expendable {Memorandum
General Revenue Service Projects Trust Qnly)
Revenues:
From local sources: . .
Taxes . . . ..o i i e e e e - 31,866,457 $82,305 $1,948,762
Tuition . .. ... ... ... 24,897 L 24,897
Earningson investments. . . ... .. ... 67,832 $451 $19¢ 5158 68,677
Otherfocalrevenues. . . . .. ... .... 26,550 81,734 i 667 108,951
Othereevenue. . . ., . . ... ... ..... 1,313 1,313
Intergovernmental - State, , . . . ... ... 1,865,518 48,757 5,505 75,942 1,955,722
Intergovernmental « Federal . . . . ... .. 838 64,728 L 65,566
Totalrevenue . . . .. ... ... ...« 3,852,092 196,983 87,810 76,138 865 4,213,888
Expenditures:
Current;
Instruction: :
Regular , .. . ... viininnn.. 1,330,877 20,899 50,744 1,402,520
Special . . . . .. ... ... ... . 154,435 37341 291,776
Vocational . . ., ... .... ... ... 95,335 1,201 06,536
Other. . . ... ... ... .. -40,347 40,347
Support services: )
Pupil .. .. e 112,249 6,123 118,372
Instructional staff . . .. ......... 157,845 34,889 . 726 653 194,114
Board ofeducation, . . ... ....... 1L7S 11,715
Administration. . . . ... ... ... .. 441,514 25,444 466,958
Fiscal. . . ... ... .. ... . ... 127,597 735 128,332
Operations and maintenance. . . . .. .. 371,200 1,263 373,163
Pupil transportation . . . ... ... ... 277,946 277,946
Central. . .. ... b e e e i e e 12,449 6,545 11,539 30,533
Community services . . . ... ...... 5393 5393
Extracurricular activities . . . . . .. ... 76,146 56,362 132,508
Debt service:
Principal retitermnent. . . . ... ... ... 75379 75,37¢
Interest and fiscal charges . . . . .. ... 15936 15,936
Total expenditures, . . .. ........ 3,315,749 188,865 92056 63,009 1,854 3,561,528
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over {under) expenditures . . . . . . B 536,343 8,117 {4,240) 13,129 {589} 552,360
Gther financing sources:

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets. . . . 3,000 ) 3,000
Total other financing sources. . . . . .. 3,000 ) . . 3,000
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and

other financing sources over (under)

expenditures. . . . ... ... ... 539,343 8,117 (4,240) 13,129 (989) 555,360

Fund balances, July 1. . . . .. ....... 462,097 49,157 92,648 47,569 5318 656,789
Increase in reserve for inventory . . . - . - - 3,189 ) ) o . 3,189
Fund balances, June 30, . . . ... ... .. 31,004,629 $57.274 $83.408 $60,698 $4,329 $1.215338

THE NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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LUCAS LOCAL SCHOCL DISTRICT

RICHLAND COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCE
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type
Tatal
Internal Nonexpendable (Memorandum
Enterprise Service Trust Oniy)
QOperating revenues: -
Tuitionand fees . . . ... ... e - o -$17,826 $17,826
Sales/charges forservices . . .. . ... ... - 120,842 $326,305 447,147
Investment eammifngs . . . . . v v v v s v u» - . : $248 948
Other operating revenues. . . . . . o - v v v - - 10,000 10,000
Total operating revenues . . . . . . . <. .. 138,668 326305 - 10,948 475,921
Qperating expenses: -
Personafservices . ... ... . ... .. 73,044 73,044
Contractservices . . . . . - o v v e v v v v 1,930 73,410 75,340
Materials and supplies. . .. ... ... ..~ 99215 321 109,036
Depreciation . . . .. ... ... 4,612 4,612
Claimsexpense . ... ..vuovrvnmaasn - 373,834 373,834
Other operating expenses. . . . - . . - - . .- - -39 2857 L. 2,896
Total operating expenses . . . . .. ... . - 178,840 450,922, 629,762
Operating income (1os8) . . . . .. .. v v .= . . {40,172) {124,617y 10,948 (153,841}
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Operating grants . . . . .. .. e e . 23,204 23,204
Federalcommodities . . . .. . .. ... ... . . 9,154 9,134
InferestIeVenue. . . - o - - v v v v e s v v .- 1,063 1,063
Lossondisposalofassets. . . . ... .. ... -{1,852) (1,852)
Qther nonoperating revenues . . . . . . ... . - . 1723 1,723
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses). . . . 31,569 _ 1,723 33,292
Netincome Tos5) . « v o v o v v o s w v v w s (8,603) {122,894) 10,948 {120,549
Retained eamings/fund batance, July 1 . . . . . 35,507 196,768 14,490 246,765
Retained earnings/fund balance, June 30 . . . .. - -$26.504 $7133874 $25438 3126216

THE NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT



LUCAS LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
RICHLAND COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASE FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, [999

Fidugiary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type
T Total
Internai MNonexpendable (Memomndum
Enterprise Service Trust Only)
Cash flows from operating activities: o :
Cash received from tuition and fees/other . . . . . . 517,947 : $10,000 $27,947
Cash received from sales/service charges . , . . . . 120,166 $328,376 448,542
Cash payments for personal services. . ., . .. ... T (72,245 ] (72.245)
Cash payments for contract services. . . . ... .. {1,850) (73,410) T - (75,260)
Cash payments for materials and supplies. . . . . . _ {90,753y o (821) {91,574)
Cash payments for claimsexpenses . . .. .. ... {309,603} - (309,693)
Cash payments for pther expenses. . . . - . . . . - o {116y ) (116)
Net cash provided by (used in) ) o
operating activities. . . . . ... ... ... .. 26,851y _(55348) ___ 10,000 (72,359)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received fram operating grants. . . . .. . .. 19,646 - 19,646
Cash received from other noncapital financing -
BCHVEEES . | . . . . e e e e e e e e e ‘ 1,723 1,723
Met cash provided by noncapital -
financing activities. . . . .. .. ... .., ... . 10646 1,723 - 21,369
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: o -
Aquisition of capital assets. . . . . . . ... ... . - (825) (825)
Wet cash used in capital and related
financing activities . . . . . . ... ... ... .. (825} - {325)
Cash flows from investing activities: -
Interestreceived. . . . . ... ... ..., ... .~ . 1083 S48 2,01
Net cash provided by investing activities . . . . . . 1,063 948 2,011
Net increase (decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents, , . ., . ......... . (6,967)_ (53,525) 16,948 (49,844)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year. . . . _ 32,166 . ) 239,145 14450 285,802
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . . . . . . . 25,199 $185,321 325438 $235.958

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities;
Operating income (loss) . . . .. ... ....... {340,172 C($124,617) $10,%48 ($153,841)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to ’ o ) : :
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depresiation . ... .... ... 4,612 ' T 4812
Federal donated commedities. . . . ... ... .. 9,154 : : © 9,154
Interest reported a3 operating income, , . . . . . . o - {(948) (948)

Changes in assets and liabilities:

(273

Inctease in materials and supplies inventory . . . (275)
Increase in accounts receivable . . . . .. .. .. (555) (553)
Decrease inprepayments . . . . . ... ..... 3 3
[ncrease in accounts payable, . . . . .. ..., . 79 79
Decrease in acerued wages and benefits. . . . . . (216) 916)
Decrease in compensated absences payable. . . . (166} {166)
[ncrease in pension cbligation payable . . . ., . 1,881 1,881
increase inclaimg payable. . . . ... ...... . 66,998
Increase (decrease) in defetred revenue. . . . . . {496) 1,575
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities, . . . . . .. ... ... ..., . {526,851 ) {$72,399)

THE NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE TINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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tucas Local School District

NQOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT

The Lucas Local Schaot District ("District"} is a body politic and corporate established for the purpose
of exercising the rights and privileges conveyed to it by the constitution and laws of the State of Chio.

The District ranks as the 579% largest by total enrollment among the 612 districts in the State. The
District operates under a locally-elected five-member Board form of government and provides
educational services as authorized by its charter and further mandated by state and/or federal
agencies. This Board controls the district's four instructionai/support facilities staffed by 31 classified
and 45 certificated full-time teaching personne! who provide services to 654 students and other
community members. : : -

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The general purpose financial statements (GPFS) of the District have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The District also applies
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations issued on or before
November 30, 1989, to its proprietary activities provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncemenis. The District's significant accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The District's reporting entity has been defined in accordance with GASB Statement No, 14, "The
Financial_Reporting Entity." When applying GASB Statement No. 14, management has
considered all potential component units. The basic, but not the only, criterion for Including a
potential component unit within the reporting entity is the Board's ability to exercise significant
oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this abiiity is financial
interdependence. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include,
but are nct fimited to, the selection of the governing authority, the designation of management,
the ability to significantly inflience operations, and the accountability for fisca! matters.

A secand criterian used in evaluating potential component units Is the scope of public service.
Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the District and/or
its citizens. A third criterion used o evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion
from the reporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether
the District is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. Based upon the application of these
criteria, the District has no component units. The foliowing organizations are described due to
their relationship with the District:




Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {Coniinued)

JOINT VENTURE WITHOUT EQUITY INTEREST

North Central Ohio Computer Cooperative (NCOCC)

NCOCC is a joint venture among 15 school districts and 1 educational service center. The joint
venture was formed for the purpose of applying modem technology with the aid of computers and
other electranic equipment to the administrative and Instructional functions among member
districts. Each of the governments of these schaols supports NCOCC based upon a per pupil
charge dependent upon the software package utilized. In the event of dissolution of the
organization, all current members will share in net obligations or asset liquidations in a ratio
propertionate to their last twelve months financial contribution. NCOCC is governed by a Board
of Directors consisting of superintendents of the members school districts. The degree of control
exercised by any school district is limited to its represeniation on the Board. In accordance with
GASE Statement No. 14, the District does not have any equily interest in NCOCC as a residual
interest in the net resources of a joint venture upon dissolution is not equivaient fo an equity
interest. Financial informaticn can be obtained from the treasurer for the Pioneer Career and
Technology JVSD, who serves as fiscal agent, at 27 Ryan Road, Shelby, Ohio 44875-0309.

PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL

GChio School Boards Associafion Workers' Compensation Group Rating Plan
The District participates in a group rating plan for workers’ compensation as established under
Section 4123.29 of the Ohio Revised Code. The Ohio School Boards Association Workers'
Compensation Group Rating Plan {GRP) was established through the Ohio School Boards

Association {OSBA) as a group purchasing pool.

The Plan’s business and affairs are conducted by a three member Board of Directors consisting
of the President, the President-Elect, and the Immediate Past President of the OSBA. The
Executive Director of the OSBA, or his designes, serves as coordinator of the Plan. Each year,
the participating school districis pay an enrollment fee to the Plan to cover the costs of
adminisiering the program.

Fund Accounting

The District uses funds and account groups to report its financial position and the results of its
operations. A fund 1$ a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. An
account group, cn the other hand, is a financial reporting device designed to provide
accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do
not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. Fund accounting is desighed to
demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions
related to certain school district activities or functions. Funds are classified into three categories:
governmental, praprietary and fiduciary. Each category is divided into separate fund types.

<10 -



L.ucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {Continued)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the District are
financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the District's expendable financial resources and
the related liabilities (except those accaunted for in proprietary funds or the nonexpendable trust
fund) are accounted for through govemmental funds. The following are the District's
governmental fund fypes: ' o '

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to
account for all financial resources axcept thase reqguired to be accounted for in ancther fund.
The general fund balance is available to the District for any purpose provided it is expended
or transferred according to the general laws of the State of Ohio.

Special Revenue Funds - The special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds
of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts, or major capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related
costs.

Capital Projects Funds - The capital projects funds are used to account for financial
resources to be used for the acquisition of construction of major capitai facilities (other than
those financed by proprietary funds or the nonexpendable trust fund).

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary funds are used to account for the District's ongoing activities which are similar to
those often found in the private sector where the determination of net income is necessary or
useful to sound financial administration. The following are the District’s proprietary fund types:

Enterprise Funds - The enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises--where the infent
of the govemning body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods
or services io the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges; or (b} where the governing body has decided that pericdic
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income Is appropriate for
capital maintenance, public pelicy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds - The internal service funds are used to account for the financing of
goods and services provided by orie department or agency to other deparfments or agencies
of the district, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

-11 -



Lucas L.ocal School District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1998

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. These
include a nonexpendable frust fund, an expendable trust fund and an agency fund. The
nonexpendable frust fund is accounted for in the same manner as propretary funds. The
expendable trust fund is accounted for in the same manner as governmental funds. Agency
funds are custodial in nature (assefs equai liabilities) and do not involve measurement of resulis
of operations. The agency fund is presented on a budget basis, with note disclosure, regarding
items which, in other fund types, weuld be subject to accrual. See Note 3 for an analysis of the
agency fund accruals which, in other fund types, would be recognized in the combined balance
sheetl.

ACCOUNT GROUPS
To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related {0 specific funds and those of general
government, and between long-term liabilities related to specific funds and those of general

nature, the following account groups are used.

General Fixed Assets Agcoynt Group - This group of accounts is established to account for
all fixed assets of the District, other than those accounted for in the proprietary or trust funds.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Groug - This group of accounts is established to
account for all long-term obligations of the District, other than those accounted for in the
proprietary funds or the nonexpendable trust fund.

C. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. All governmental funds and the expendable trust fund are accounted for
using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only
current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operafing’
statements of these funds present increases (revenues and other financing sourcesy and
decreases (expenditures and other financing uses} in net current assets.

All proprietary funds and the nonexpendable frust fund are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities
associated with the operations of theses funds are included on the balance sheet. Proprietary fund
type operating statements present increases {revenues] and decreases (expenses} in net tofai
asselis.

S49.



Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed for governmental funds and the expendable
trust fund. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they
become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period, which for
the District Is sixty days after the June 30 year end. Revenues accrued at the end of the year
include taxes, (io the extent they are intended to finance the current fiscal year), interest, and
accounts (student fees and tuition). Current property taxes measurable as of June 30, 1999, and
which are intended to finance fiscal 2000 operations, have been recorded as deferred revenues.
Delinguent properly taxes measurable and available (received within 60 days) are recognized as
revenue. [n proprietary funds, unused donated commodities are repotted as deferred revenue.

The District reporis deferred revenue on its combined bajance sheet. Deferred revenues arise
when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available" criteria for
recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by
the District before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the
recognition of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition
criteria are met, or when the govarnment has a legal claim to the resources, the liahility for
deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

Expenditures (decreases in net financial resources) are recognized in the period in which the
fund liability is incurred with the following exception: general iong-term obligation principal and
interest are reported only when due; and costs of accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave
are reporied as expenditures in the pericd in which they will be liquidated with available financial
resources rather than in the period eamed by employees.

The proprietary funds and nonexpendable frust fund are accounted for on the accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basls of accounting, revenues are recorded when =arned and
expenses are recerded at the time liabilities are incurred. The fair value of donated commodities
used during the year is reported in the operating statement as an expense and a like amount is
reported as donated commodities revenue.

Budgets

The District is required by state statute to adopt an annual appropriated cash basis budget for all
funds. The specific timetable for fiscal year 1999 Is as follows:

1. Prlor fo January 15 of the preceding year, the Supetintendent and Treasurer submit to the
Beard of Education a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following
July 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing for all funds.

Public hearings are publicized and conducted to obtain taxpayers' comments. The
expressed purpose of this budget document is to reflect the need for existing (or increased)
tax rates.

2. By no later than January 20, the board-adopted budget is filed with the Richland County
Budget Commission for tax rate determination.

-13-



Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

3.

Prior to April 1, the Board of Education accepts, by formal resoluticn, the tax rates as
determined by the Budget Commission and receives the Commission's Ceriificate of
Estimated Resources which states the projected revenue of each fund. Prior to June 30, the
District must revise its budget so that total contemplated expenditures from any fund during
the ensuing year will not exceed the amount stated in the Certificate of Estimated Resources.
The revised budget then serves as a basis for the appropriation measure. On or about July
1, the Certificate is amended to include any unencumbered balances from the preceding year
as reported by the District Treasurer. The Certificate may be further amended during the
year if projected increases or decreases in revenue are identified by the District Treasurer.
The amounts reported in the budgetary statement reflect the amounts set forth in the final
Amended Certificate issued for fiscal year 1998, ’

By July 1, the annual appropriation resolution is legally enacted by the Board of Education
at the fund, function, and cbject level of expenditures, which are the legal levels of budgetary
control. (State statute permits a temporary appropriation to be effective until no later than
QOctoher 1 of each year.) Resolution appropriations by fund must be within the estimated
resources as certified by the County Budget Commission and the total of expenditures and
encumbrances may not exceed the appropriation iotals. :

Any revisions that aiter the total of any fund appropriation or alter total function appropriations
within a fund, or alter object appropriations within functions must be approved by the Board
of Education. o

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year
for all funds consistent with the general obligation bond indenture and other statutory
provisions. All depariments/functions and funds completed the year within the amount of
their legally authorized cash basis appropriation.

Appropriation amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Board of Education
through the vear by supplemental appropriations which either reallocated or increased the
original appropriated amounts. All supplemental appropriations were legally enacted by the
Board during fiscal 1999.

Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end. Encumbered apprapriations are carried
forward o the succeeding fiscal year and need not be reappropriated. Expenditures plus
encumbrances may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund, function and/or
object level.

Encumbrance accounting is utilized with District funds in the normal course of operafions, for
purchase orders and contract related expenditures. An encumbrance is a reserve on the
available spending authority due to commitment for a future expenditure and does not
reprasent a liability. For governmental fund types, encumbrances outstanding at year end
appear as a reserve to the fund balance on a GAAP basis and as the equivalent of
expenditures on a non-GAAP budgetary basis in order to demonstrate legal compliance.
Note 15 provides a reconciliation of the budgetary and GAAP basis of accounting and Note
12 discloses encumbrances outstanding for the enterprise funds at fiscal year end.

-14 .



Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)
E. Cash and Investments

To improve cash management, cash received by the District is pooled. Monies for all funds,
including proprietary funds, are maintained in this pool. Individual fund integrity is maintained
through the District’s records. Each fund’s interest in the pool is presented as “"Equity in Pocled
Cash and Cash Equivalents” and “Investments” on the combined balance sheet.

During fiscal year 1999, investments were limited to a nonnegotiable certificate of deposit and
investments in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohic). Except for
nenparticipating investment contracts, investments are stated at fair market value which is based
upon guoted market prices. Nonparticipating investment contracts such as nonnegotiable
certificates of deposit are reported at cost.

STAR Chic is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer's Office which allows
governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAR Ohlo is not
registered with the SECT as an investment company, but does operate in a manner consistent with
Rule 2a7 of the Invesiment Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at
STAR Ohig’s share price which is the price the investment could be sold for on June 30, 1999.

Under existing Ohio Statutes all investment earnings are assigned to the general fund unless
statutorily required {o be credited to specific fund. By policy of the Board of Education,
investment earnings are assigned to the general fund, the District Managed Activities special
revenue fund, the expendable frust fund, the nonexpendable trust fund, the Food Service
enterprise fund, and the Permanent Improvement capital projects fund. The following funds were
credited with more interest revenue than would have heen received based upon their share of
the District's investments during fiscal 1959:

[nterest Interest Based

Actually Upon Share of Interest Assigned

Received Investments By Other Funds
General Fund $ 67,832 $ 43,448 $ 24,386
Special Revenue Fund
District Managed Aciivilies 451 293 o 158
Enierprise Funds
Food Service 1,063 972 91

-15.




Lucas Local School District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 19989

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

For purposes of the combined statement of cash flows and for presentation on the combined
halance sheet, investments of the cash management pool and investments with original
raturities of three months or less at the time they are purchased by the District are considered
to be cash equivalents. |Investments with an initial maturity of more than three months are
reported as investments.

An analysis of the Treasurer's investment account at year end is provided in Note 4.
F. Inventory

Inventories for all governmental funds are valued at cost (first-inffirst-out method). The purchase
method is used o account for inventories. Under the purchase method, inventories are recorded
as expenditures when purchased; however, material amocunts of inventories at period end are
reported as assets of the respective fund, which are equally offset by a fund balance reserve
which indicates they are unavailable for appropriation even though they are a component of
reported assets. o

Inventories of proprietary funds consist of donated food, purchased food, food service paper and
janitorial supplies and are valued at the lower of cost {{irst-inffirst-out method) or market and
expensed when used rather than when purchased.

G. Fixed Assets and Depreciation
1. Genéral Fixed Assets Account Group

General fixed assets are capitalized at cost or estimated hisiorical cost. Donated fixed
assets are recarded at their fair market values as of the date donated. The District follows
the policy of not capitalizing assets with a cost of less than $500. No depreciation is
recognized for assets in the general fixed asseis account group. The District has not
included infrastructure in the general fixed assets account group. '

2. Proprietary Funds
Equipment reflected in these funds are stated at historical cost or estimated historical cost
and updated for the cost of additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets
are recorded at their fair market values as of the date donated. Depreciation has been
provided, where appropriate, on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset _ Life (years)

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-20

-16 -



L.ucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {Continued)

H.

Intergovernmental Revenues

In governmental funds, entitements and non-reimbursable grants (to the extent such grants and
entittements relate to the current fiscal year) are recorded as receivables and revenue when
measurable and available. Reimbursement type grants are recorded as receivables and
revenues when the related expenditures are incurred. Other than commeodities, grants and
entitlements for proprietary fund operations are recognized as non-operating revenue when
measurable and eamed. The District currently participates in various state and federal pregrams
categorized as follows:

Entitlements

General Fund
Staie Foundation Program
Staie Property Tax Relief

Non-Reimbursable Grants A

Special Revenue Funds

Education Management Information Systems
Title VI-B

Local Professional Development

Title 1

Title VI

Textbook Materials/Subsidy

Venture Capital

Transition Funding

Schoot ta Work

Continuous Impravement Development

Capital Projects Funds
SchoolNet Plus

Proprietary Funds
Focd Distribution Program

Reimbursable Granis

Genergl Fund

Driver Education Reimbursement
School Bus Purchase Reimbursement
Vocational Education Travel/Safary

Proprietary Funds
National School Lunch Program
Government Denated Commodities

-17 -



Lucas Local Schocol District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

Grants and entitlements amounted to approximately 44% of the District's operating revenue
during the 1999 fiscal year.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences of the District consist of vacation leave and sick leave to the extent that
payment to the employee for these absences are atfributable to services already rendered and
are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and the employee.

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 18, "Accounting for Compensated
Absences,” a liability for vacation leave is accrued if a) the employees' rights fo payment are
attributable to services already rendered; and b) it is probable that the employer will compensate
the employees for the benefits through paid time off or other means, such as cash payment at
termination or retirement. A liability for severance Is accrued using the vesting method; i.e., the
liapility is based on the sick leave accumulated at the balance sheet date by those employees
who are currently efigible to receive termination (severance) payments, as well as those
employees expected to become eligible in the fulure. For purposes of establishing a liability for
severance on employees expected to become eligible to retire in the future, all employees age
fifty or greater with at least ten years of service and all employees with at least twenty years of
service regardless of their age were considered expected to become eligible to retire in
accordance with GASE Statement No. 18.

The total liability for vacation and sick leave payments has been caiculated using pay rates in
effect at the balanca sheet daie, and reduced to the maximum payment allowed by labor contract
and/or statute, plus any applicable additional salary related payments.

Contributed Capital

Contributed capital is recorded in proprietary funds that have received capital granis, or
coniributions from developers, customers, or other funds. These assets are recorded at their fair
market value on the date contributed. Depreciation on those assets acquired or constructed with
contributed resources is expensed and closed o unreserved retained earnings at year end.

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debi is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources
have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other
long-term abligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available
financial resources is reported as a fund liakility of a government fund. The remaining portion
of such obligations is reported in the general long-term obligations account group.
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Lucas Local School District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

Under Chic law, a debt retirement fund must be created and used for the payment of all debt
principal interest. GAAP requires the allocation of the debt liability among the general and the
general long-term abligations account group, with principal and interest payments on matured
general long-term debt being reported in the debt service fund. To comply with the GAAP
reporting requirements, the District's debt retirement fund has been split among the appropriate
funds and account group. Debt service fund resources used to pay both principal and interest
have also been allocated accordingly.

Long-term liabilities expected o be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for
in those funds.

L. Fund Equity

Reserved fund balances indicate that portion of fund equity which is not available for current
appropriation or is legally segregated for a specific use. Fund bhalances are reserved for
encumbrances, debt service, materials and supplies inventory, principal endowmert,
prepayments, budget stabilization, and tax revenue unavailable for appropriation. The
unreserved portions of fund equity reflected for the governmental funds are available for use
within the specific purposes of those funds. The reserve for property tax revenue unavailable for
appropriation represenis taxes recognized as revenue under GAAP bui not available for
appropriations under State statute.

M. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the District may have numercus transactions between
funds. The most significant include:

1. Transfers of resources from one fund {o ancther fund. The resources transferred are o be
expended for operations by the receiving fund and are recorded as operating transfers, with
the exception of agency funds, which do not show transfers of rescurces as operating
iransfers. The District made no operating transfers in fiscal year 1599.

2. Reimbursements from one fund to another are treated as expenditures/expenses in the
reimbursing fund and a reduction in expenditures/expenses in the reimbursed fund. Quasi-
external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.

3. Short-term interfund loans and accrued interfund reimbursements and accrued operating
transfers are reflected as "interfund loans receivable or payable". The District had no short-
term interfund loans receivable or payable at June 30, 1999.

4. Long-term interfund loans that will not be repaid within the next year are termed "advances”
and are shown as reservations of fund balances on the combined balance sheet for those
funds that report advances to other funds as assets because they are not spendable,
available resources. The District had no long-term advances receivable or payable at June
30, 1998.
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Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NQTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {Continued)

N.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets in the general fund represent cash and cash equivalents set aside to establish
a budget stabilization reserve. This reserve is required by Siate statute and can be used only
after receiving approval from the State Superintendent of Public Instruction. A fund balance
resetrve has also been established. See Note 18 for detail of statutory reserves.

Estimates

The preparation of the GPFS in corformity with GAAP requires management o make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the GPFS and accompanying notes. Actual
results may differ from those estimates.

Prepayments

Prepayments for governmental funds represent cash dishursements which have cceurred and
are therefore not current expendable resources. These items are reported as fund assets on the
balance sheet using the allocation methed, which amortizes their cost over the periods benefiting
from the advance paymeni At period end, because prepayment is not available to finance fuiure
governmenial fund expenditures, the fund balance Is reserved by an amount egual to the carrying
value of the asset.

Memorandum Only - Total Columns

Total columns on the GPFS are captioned (Memorandum Only) to indicate that they are
presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do net present financial
position, results of operations, or changes in financial position in conformity with GAAP, Neither
is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the
aggregation of this data.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTABILITY AND CONPLIANCE

1.

Deficit Fund Balances
Fund balance at June 30, 1899 Included the following individual fund deficits:

De_’r_"tc_:_i_t__Balance

Special Revenue Funds :
Title | ' § (110)
Local Professional Deveicpment ) - (12)

These funds complied with Chio state law, which does not permit a cash basis deficit at year end.

The deficit fund balances in the Title [ and the Local Professional Development special revenue
funds are caused by accruing wage and benefit obligations in accordance with GAAP. These
deficits wilt be eliminated by intergovernmental revenues and other resouices not recognized at
June 30.
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Lucas Local Schocol District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTABILITY AND COMPLIANCE - Continued
2. Agency Fund

The following are accruals for the agency fund, which, in another fund type, would be recegnized
in the combined balance sheet:

ASSETS o
Accounts receivable $415
LIABILITIES _ , _
Accrued wages and beneiits 78
Accounts payable 243
Pension cbligation payable 26

NOTE 4 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The Disirict maintains a cash and investment pool used by all funds. Each fund type's portion of this
pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents”
and “Investments”. Statutes require the classification of monies held by the District into three
categories:

Active deposits are public deposits necessary fo meet current demands on the freasury. Such
monies must be maintained either as cash in the District treasury, in commercial accounts payable
or withdrawable on demand, including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money
market deposit accounts.

Inactive deposits are public deposits the Board of Education has identified as not required for use
within the current two year period of designation of depaesitories. Inactive deposits must either be
evidenced by certificates of deposit maturing not later than the end of the current period of
designation of depositories, or by savings or deposit accounts including, but not limited to, passboaok
accounts. ! o

Interim deposits are depesits of intetim monies. Interim monies are those monies which are not
needed for immediate use bui which will be needed before the end of the current period of
designation of depositories. Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates of deposit
maturing not more than one year from the date of deposit or by savings accounts, including passbook
accounis.

Protection of the District's depaosits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporaticn (FDIC),
by eligible securities pledged by the financial institution as security for repayment, by surety company
bonds deposited with the Treasurer by the financial institution or by a single collateral pool established
by the financial institution to secure the repayment of all public monies deposited with the institution,
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LLucas Loca! School District

NGCTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 4 - EQUITY IN POQOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS - (Continued)

Interim monies may be invested or deposited in the following securilies:

1.

United States Treasury Notes, Bills, Bonds, or any other obligation or security issuad by the
United States Treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal ar interest by the
United States;

Bonds, Notes, Debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal
government agency or instrumentafity, including but not limited to, the Federal National
Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation, Govemment National Mortgage Assaciation, and Student Loan
Marketing Association. All federal agency securities shall be direct issuances of federal
government agencies or instrumentalities;

Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market value
of the securitizs subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value of the
agreement by at least two percent and be marked 1o market daily, and that the term of the
agreement must not exceed thirty days;

Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;

No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in division
{1} ar (2} of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided
that investments in securities described in this division are made only through eligible
institutions;

The Stafe Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio);
Certain bankers’ acceptances and commercial paper notes for a period not to exceed one
hundred and eighty days in an amount not to exceed twenty-five percent of the interim

monies available for investment at any cne time; and

Under limited circumstances, corporaie debt instruments rated in either of the two highest
rating classifications by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies,

investmenis in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements and
derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of
leverage and short selling are also prohibited. An investment must mature within five years from the
date of purchase unless maiched to a specific obligaticn or debt of the District, and must be
purchased with the expectation that it will be held to maturity. Investments may only be made through
specified dealers and instifutions. Payment for investments may be made only upon delivery of the
securities representing the invesiments to the Treasurer or qualified trustee or, if the securities are
not represented by a certificate, upon reéceipt of confirmation of fransfer from the custodian.
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Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 4 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS - (Continued)

Cash on hand: At fiscal year end, the District had $50 in undeposited cash on hand which is included
on the combined balance sheet of the District as part of "Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash
Equivalents."

The following information classifies deposits and investments by categories of risk as defined In
GASB Statement No. 3, "Deposits with Financiat institutions, Investments and Reverse Repurchase

Agreements.'

Deposits: At year end, the carrying amount of the District's deposits was $62,196 and the bank
balance was $157,111. These balances include a $100,000 nonnegetiable cerificate of deposit. The
entire hank balance was covered by FDIC. Although all State statutory requirements for the deposit
of money had been followed, non-compliance with federal requirements would potentially subject the
District to a successful ciaim by the FDIC.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposits in excess of all deposits not
covered by federal depository insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are
ohligations of the United Staies and its agencies, obligations of the State of Ohio and ifs
municipalities, and obligations of the other stafes,

Obligations pledged to secure deposits must be delivered to a bank other than the institution in which
the deposit is made. Writien custodial agreementis are required.

Investments, Investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the

eniity at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or securities held
by the District. Category 2 Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securiiies

are held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the District's name, Category 3 includes

uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty or by

its trust depariment, but not in the District's name.

The District had an investment of $1,299,207 in STAR Ohio. STAR Ohio is not categorized because
it is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

The classification of cash and cash equivalents and investments on the combined balance sheet is
based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9 “Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and
i Proprietary Fund Accounting.”
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Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 4 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS - {Continued)
A reconciliation between the classifications of pooled cash and cash equivalents and investments on
the combined balance sheet (per GASB Statement No. 8} and the classifications of deposiis and
invesiments presented above per GASB Statement No. 3 is as follows:

Cash and Cash

Equivalents/
Deposits [nvestments
GASB Statement 9 $ 1,261,453 3 100,000
[nvestments: e - o . . -
STAROhio (1,299,207) 1,299,207
Certificate of Deposit 100,000 {100,000)
Cash on hand (50 0
GASB Statement 3 § 62,198 $ 1,289,207

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are [evied and assessed on a calendar year basis. Distributions from the second half
of the calendar year occur in a new fiscal year and are intended to finance the operations of that year.
Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility and tangible {(used in business)
property located in the District. Real propetty taxes and public ufility taxes are levied after November
1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1, the lien date. Assessed values are
established by State law at 35% of appraised market value,

FPublic utility property taxes are assessed on tangible personal preperty, as well as land and
improvements. Real property is assessed at 35% of market value and personal property is assessed
at 100% of market value except for the personal property of rural electric companies which is
assessed 50% of market and railroads which are assessed at 28%.

Tangible personal property taxes attach as a lien and are levied on January 1 of the current year.

Tangible personai property assessments are 25% of true value. The assessed value upon which the
1988 taxes were collecied was $43,873,570. Agriculturalfresidential and public utility/minerals real
estate represented 63.59% or $27,897,900 of this total, commercial & industrial real estaie
represented 2.80% or $1,228,750 of this iotal, public utlility tangible represented 31.70% or
$13,907,090 of this total and general tangible property represented 1.91% or $839,830 of this total.
The voted general tax rate at the fiscal year ended June 30, 1589 was $45.00 per $1,000.00 of
assessed valuation for operations and $1.50 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation for debt retirement.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annuafly. If paid annually, payment is due
Decamber 31; if paid semi-annually, the first payment is due December 31 with the remainder payable
by June 20, i ’
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Lucas Local Schoo! District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1989

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY TAXES - (Continued)

The District receives property taxes from Richland and Ashland Counties. The respective County
Treasurers collect property taxes on behalf of the District. The respective County Auditors periodically
remit to the District iis portion of the taxes collected. These tax "advances"” are based on statutory
cash flow collection rates. Final "setilements" are made each February and August.

Accrued property taxes receivable represent delinquent taxes outstanding and rea! property, personal
progperty and public uiility taxes which became measurable as of June 30, 1599. Although total
property tax collections for the nexf fiscal year are measurable, ‘they are not {exclusive of advances)
intended io finance current year operations. The net receivable (total recelvable less amount
available intended to finance the current year) is therefore offset by a credit to deferred revenue. The
amount available as an advance, and recorded as revenue, at June 30, 1999, was SSTO 022 in the
general fund and $15,032 in the debt service fund.

Taxes available for advance and recognized as revenue but not received by the District prior to June
30, 1999, are reflecied as a reservation of fund balance for future appropriations. The District is
prohibited, by law, from appropriating this revenue in accordance with ORC Section 5705.35, since
an advance of revenue was not requested or received prior to the fiscal year end,

NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 1998 consisted of taxes, accounts (billings for user charged services),
accruad interest and intergovermmental grants and entitlements (to the extent such grants and
entitlements relate {o the current fiscal year). Intergovernmental receivables have been reported as
"due from other governments” on the combined balance sheet. All receivables are considered
colleciible in full due fo the ability to foraclose for the nonpayment of taxes and the stable condition
of Staie programs and the current year guarantee of federal funds.

A summary of the principal iiems of receivables follows:

Amount_s
General Fund )
Taxes - current and delinquent , $ 1,760,783
Due from other governmenis 4 554
Accrued Interest 2,765
Debt Service Fund .
Taxes - current and delmquent o 71,632
Enterprise Funds R
Due from other governmernts 3,558
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Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 7 - FIXED ASSETS

A summary of the changes in the general fixed assets account group during the fisca!l year follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 1998 Additions Deletions June 30, 1998

Land / improvements $ 48,875 3 Q % 0 ] $ 48,875
Buildings / improvements

2,991,131 27,758 0] 3,018,889

Furniture / equipment 625,873 51,704 10,577 667,100

Vehicles 427,579 - 62,234 23,724 466,089

Total $ 4,093,558 $ 141,696 $ 34,301 $ 4,200,953

There was no significant construction in progress at June 30, 1999.

A summary of the proprietary fixed assets at June 30, 1999 foliows:

Furniture and equipment $ 75,955
Less: accumulated depreciation (63,244)
Net fixed assets e $ 12,711

NOTE 8 - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Changes in centributed capital for the year ended June 30, 1989 are summarized by source as
follows:

Food Service

Contributed capital, July 1, 1998 : $ 1,800
Current confributions 0
Contributed capital, June 30, 1599 $ 1,500

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The District has iwo long-term debt issues outstanding at June 30, 1989. These debt issues
represent a general obligation bond and an energy conservation note.

During fiscal year 1998, the District issued a $53,785 energy canservaiion note fo provide for energy
improvements to various Disirict buildings. The primary source of repayment of this note is through
energy savings as a resuit of the improvements. This note bears an interest rate of 4.75% and
matures on September 1, 2007.
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Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - Continued

Payments of principal and interest relating to these liabilities are recorded as expenditures in the debt
service fund. Unmatured obligations are accounted for in the general long-term obligations account
group. - : B )

A. The following is a description of the District's general obllgatlon bond and energy conservatlon
note outstanding as of June 30, 1999; L

Interest Maturity Outstanding Retired In Ouistanding
Rate Date July 1, 1898 1999 June 30, 1999
General obligation
bond payable 5.50% 12/01/01 $280,000 $(70,000) $210,000
Energy conservation
note payable 4.75% 09/01/07 53,785 (5,379) 48,406
$333,785 $(75,379) $258,406

B. The following is a summary of the District's future annual debt service requirements to maturity
for the general chligation bond and the energy conservation note;

Fiscal Year Principal on Interest on
Ending Bond/Note Bond/Note Total

2000 - 75379 11,828 . 87,207
2001 75,379 7,719 83,098
2002 75,379 3,610 78,889
2003 R 5,379 1,426 5,805
2004 5,379 1,167 ' 6,548
2005 - 2008 21,611 2,077 23,588
Total $ 258,408 $ 27,827 $ 286,233

C. During the year ended June 30, 1999, the following changes occurred in Fiabilities reperted in the
general long-term obligations account group. Compensated absences are presented net of
actual increases and decreases due to the practicality of determining these values.
Compensated absences and pension obligations will be paid from the fund in which the employee

is paid.
Balance : o Balance

July 1, 19858 Increase Decrease June 30, 1888
General obligation band $ 280,000 3 0 $ (70,000) $ 210,000
Compensated absences 121,253 ) 35,072 0] 156,325
Pension obligation payable 44,718 43,162 (44,718) 43,162
Energy conservation noie 53,785 _ 0 (5,379) 48,4086
Total $499,756 $ 78,234 $(120,087) $ 457,893
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iucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - (Continued)
D. Legal Debt Margin

The Chic Revised Code provides that voted net general obligation debt of the District shall never
exceed 9% of the total assessed valuation of the District. The code further provides that unvoted
indebtedness shall not exceed 1/10 of 1% of the property valuation of the District. The effects
of these debt Emitations at June 30, 1999 are a voted debt margin of $3,827,029 (including
available funds of $88,408) and an unvoted debt margin of $43,874. ' ’

NOTE 10 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The criteria for determining vested vacation and sick leave components are derived from negotiated
agreements and State laws. Classified employees earn five to twenty days of vacation per year,
depending upon length of service. Accumulated unused vacation time is paid fo classified employees
upon termination of employment. Administrators who are contracted to worlk 260 days in a year are
given fifteen to twenty days of vacation per yvear by centract. Any unused vacation days at the end
of the contract are forfeited. The only exception is the Superintendent who can carry over up to ten
days at the end of his contract, and the Treasurer who can carry over up to five days at the end of
her contract. Teachers do not earn vacation time.

Administrators, teachers, and classified employees eam sick leave at a rate ¢f one and one-fourth
days per month. Sick leave may be accumulated up to 220 days. Upon retirement, payment is made
to employees with ten or more years of service at the District for twenty-five percent of the {otal sick
leave accumulation with a maximum of 40 days payment.

During fiscal year 1998, the District adopted a one-time exit bonus for all pari-time employees with
a minimum of ten consecutive years of experience with the District. Pari-time employees who elect
this exit bonus must retire with the retirement system. Upon retirement, the exit bonus will he
calculated on a formula of twenty-five percent of the first 120 days of accrued sick leave. The exit
bonus is calculated using the scheduled daily rate of pay at the time of retirement. For those part-time
who have accrue sick leave beyond 120 days, the following additional formula will appiy:

Accurnulated Exit Bonus Shall Total Exit
Sick Leave Be Increased By ~_Bonus Days
130 - 138 days 1 additional day 31
140 - 148 days 2 additional days 32
180 - 150 days 3 additional days 33
160 - 169 days 4 additional days 34
170 - 179 days 5 additional days 35
180 - 189 days 8 additional days 38
190 - 199 days 7 additional days 37
200 - 209 days . 8 additional days 38
210 - 219 days 9 additional days 39

> = 220 days 10 additional days 40

The maximum exit honus days that any employee can earn is forty.
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Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT

A.

Property, Fleet, and Liability Insurance

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related fo torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries 16 employees; and natural disasters. During fiscal year
1998, the District retained property insurance coverage in the blanket amount of $13,183,895 with
90% coinsurance, replacement cost @ndorsement and a $1,000 deductible. Bailer and machinery
coverage Is also included in with the blanket coverage in the amount of $5,757,190 with a $1,000
deductible. The District also has inland marine floaters in the amount of $83,288 with a $100
deductible for coverage of audio visual equipment, two way radios, fractors, musical instruments
and uniforms.

Vehicles are covered by a policy through Natiocnwide/Mausau Insurance Companies which
provides for a $50 deductible for comprehensive and a $250 deductible for collision. Vehicle
liability has a $2,000,000 combined single limit of liability,

Nationwide\Wausau Insurance Companies also provide general liabilily coverage with a
$2,000,000 single occurrence limit and an aggregate of $5,000,000 with no deductible.

Employee Dishonesty Bonds

The District carries emplovee dishonesty bonds for the Treasurer, Superintendent, and Board
President in the amount of $20,000. Also an ernployee blanket dishonesty bond in the amount
of $5,000 is provided to cover all other employees of the District.

Worker's Compensation

The District participates in the Ohio School Boards Association Workers' Compensation Group
Rating Program (GRP), an insurance purchasing pool (see Note 2.A)). The GRP's business and
affairs are conducted by a three member beoard of directors consisting of the President, the
President-Elect and the Immediate Past President of the Ohio School Beards Association. The
Executive Director of the OSBA, or his designee, serves as coordinator of the program. Each
year, the paricipating school districts pay an enrallment fee o the GRP to cover the costs of
administering the program.

The intent of the GRP is o achieve the beneflt of a reduced premium for the District by virtue of
its grouping and representation with other participanis in the GRP. The worker's compensation
experience of the participating schoaol districis is calculated as one experience and a common
premium rate is applied to all school districts in the GRP. Each pariicipant will then either receive
maney from or be required to contribufe to the "Equity Peooling Fund”, This "equity pooling”
arrangement insures that each participant shares equally in the overall performance of the GRP.
Participation in the GRP is limited to school districts that can meet the GRP's selection criteria.
The firm of Gates McDonald & Co. provides administrative, cost control, and actuarial services
to the GRP. :
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Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGENMENT - (Continued)
D. Employee Group Life, Medical, Dental, and Vision Insurance

The District provides life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment insurance to all
reqular contracted employees through Anthem Benefit Administrators |nc. in the following
amounts: full-time employees $25,000, administrators $50,000, and part-time grandfathered
employees $10,000,

The District has elected to provide a comprehensive medical benefits package to the employees
through a self-insured program. The District maintains a self-insured internal service fund to
account for the finances of its uninsured risks of loss in this program. This package provides a
comprehensive medical plan with a $275 single and $375 family deductible ($100 singte and $200
family deductibles for adminisirators). A third party administrator, Anthem Benefits Administrators
Inc., lacated in Columbus, Ohio, reviews all claims for the medical plan which are then paid by
the District. The District purchases stop-loss coverage of $20,000 per individual and an
aggregate limit of $228,106 from Cox Insurance Group. The total monthly premium paid into the
internal service fund for the medical plan is $158 for single coverage and $390 for family
coverage which is paid out of the same fund that pays the salary for the employse. The District's
amounts are capped by negotiated union contracts and cannot be increased except throughout
negotiations. The employee monthly portion of the premium is $16 for single coverage and $38
for family coverage which is withheld from their biweekly payroll. The employees are responsible
for payment of all claim amounts in excess of the employer capped amounts.

The District provides dental coverage for its employees on a self-insured basis through Anthem
Benefits Administrators inc. The total menthly premium is $28 for single and family coverage.
This premium is paid by the District. Like the medical premium, this amount is also capped by
negotiaied union contracts and cannot be raised except through negotiated agreement. The
employees are responsible for payment of all ¢claim amounts in excess of the employer capped
amounts.

The above employee portions of premiums for medical and dental insurance are for full-time
employees. Grandfathered pari-time employees also have medical and dental insurance
benefits. : -

The claims liability of $89,014 reported in the fund at June 30, 1989, is based on the requiraments
of GASB Statement No. 10, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related
Insurance lssues,” as amended by GASB Statement No. 30, "Risk Financing Omnibus," which
requires ihat a liability for unpaid claims costs, including estimates of costs relating to incurred
but not reported claims, be accrued at the estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims. Changes
in claims activity for the past two fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Beginning Of
Year _ . Q'Eiﬂ?? ,,, Paymgqtg - ,,fEnd of Year
1999 $ 22018 $373,834 $(306,836) $ 89,014
1998 $ 18,126 - $ 147,895 3 (144,005) $ 22,016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 390, 1989

NOTE 12 - SEGMENT INFORMATION - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The District maintains three enterprise funds to account for the operations of food service, uniform
scheol supplies and farm operations. The table below reflecis, in @ summarized format, the more
significant financial data relating to the enterprise funds of the District as of and for the year ended
June 30, 1989. _

Food Uniform School Rotary
Service X Supplies Farm Total

Operating revenue $118,039 $17,826 - $2,803 $138,668
Operating expenses T - : A

before depreciation 156,128 16,656 1,444 174,228
Depreciation 4,612 - _——— . 4612
Operating income (loss) (42,701} 1,170 1,359 {40,172)
Operating grants 23,204 - - 23,204
Net income (loss) {11,132) 1,170 1,359 (8,603)
Net working capital 2,708 9,628 3,357 15,693
Total assets .- 34,110 . 9,911 3,357 47,378
Total liabilities 18,691 283 --- 18,974
Contributed capital 1,500 B - ' 1,500
Total equity 15,419 9,628 3,357 - 28,404
Encumbrances o o o _ -

at 06/30/99 1,000 i - 450 B 1,450

NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
A, School Employees Retirement System

The District contributes to the Schoo! Employees Retirement System of Ohio (SERS), a cost-
sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system administered by the School
Employees Retirement Board. SERS provides basic retirement benefits, disability, survivor, and
health care benefits based on eligible service credit o members and beneficiaries. Benefits are
established by Chapter 3309 of the Ohic Revised Code. SERS issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
SERS. The report may be obtained by writing to the School Employees Retirement System, 45
North Fourth Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3634,
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NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - Continued

Plan members are required to contribute @ percent of their annual covered salary and the District
is required to contribute 14 percent for 1999; 8.02 percent was the portion to fund pension
obligations. The contribution rates are not determined actuarially, but are established by the
School Employees Retirement Board within the rates allowed by State statute. The adequacy
of the contribution rates is determined annually. The District's required contributions for pension
obligations to SERS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1999, 1998 and 1997 were $80,370,
$77,678, and $97,143, respectively; 37.5 percent has been contributed for fiscal year 1999 and
100 percent for the fiscal years 1998 and 1997. 350,154, representing the unpaid coniribution
for fiscal year 1998, Is recorded as a liability within the respective funds and the generatl long-term
obligations account group. '

2. State Teachers Retirement Systam

The District contributes to the State Teachers Retirement Systerm of Ohio (STRS), a cost-sharing
multiple employer public employee retirement system administered by the State Teachers
Reftrement Board. STRS provides basic retirement benefits, disability, survivor, and health care
benefits based on eligible service credit to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established
by Chapter 3307 of the Chio Revised Code. STRS issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financlal statements and required supplementary information for STRS. The report may
be gbtained by writing to the State Teachers Retirement Sysiem, 275 East Broad Street,
Columbus, Ohic 43215-3771.

Plan members are required to contribute 8.3 percent of their annual covered salary and the
District is required to contribute 14 percent; 8 percent was the poertion used to fund pension
cbligations. Contribution rates are established by the State Teachers Retirement Board, upon
recommendation of its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximurm rates of 10 percent
for members and 14 percent for employers. The District’s required contributions for pension
obligations to STRS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were $224,723,
$214,012, and $222,363, respectively; 83.15 percent has been contributed for fiscal year 1899
and 100 percent for the fiscal years 1998 and 1997. $37,864, representing the unpaid
contribution for fiscal year 1989, is recorded as a lability within the respective funds.

NOTE 14 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The District provides comprehensive health care benefits to retired teachers and their dependents
through the State Teachers Retlirement System (STRS), and fo retired non-ceriified employees and
their dependents through the School Employees Retirement System (SERS). Benefiis includé
hospitalization, physicians' fees, prescrintion drugs, and reimbursement of monthly Medicare
premiums. Benefii provisions and the obligations to contribute are established by the Systems based
on authority granted by State statute. Both systems are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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NQTE 14 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - (Continued)

The State Teachers Retirement Board has statutory authority over how much, if any, of the health
care costs will be absorbed by STRS. Most benefit recipients pay a portion of the heaith care cost
in the form of 2 monthly premium. By Ohio law, the cost of coverage paid from STRS funds shall be
included in the employer contribution rate, currenily 14 percent of covered payrall. For this fiscal year,
the Board allocated employer contributions equal to eight percent of covered payroll to the Health
Care Reserve Fund. For the District, this amount equaled $128,413 during fiscal 1998.

STRS pays health care benefits from the Health Care Reserve Fund. The balance in the Fund was
$2.156 billion at June 30, 1998 (the latest information available). For the year ended June 30, 1998
(the latest information available), net health care costs paid by STRS were $219.224 million and
STRS had 91,999 eligible benefit recipients.

For SERS, coverage is made available to service retirees with ten or more years of qualifying service
credit, and disability and survivor benefit recipients. Members retiring on or after August 1, 1889, with
less than twenty-five years of service credit must pay a portion of their premium for health care. The
portion is based on years of service up {o a maximum of 75 percent of the premijum.

For this fiscal year, emplayer contributions to fund health care benefits were 4.98 percent of covered
payroll. In addition, SERS levies a surcharge fo fund health care benefits equal to 14 percent of the
difference between a minimum pay and the member's pay, pro-rated for partial service credit. For
fiscal year 1999, the minimum pay has been established at $12,400. The surcharge, added to the
unallccated portion of the 14 percent employer contribution rate, provides for maintenance of the
asset target level for the health care fund.

The target level for the health care reserve is 125 percent of ahnual heaith care expenses. Expenses
for health care at June 30, 1998 (the latest information available), were $111.9 million and the target
level was $139.8 million. At June 30, 1998 {the latest information available) SERS had net assets
available for payment of health care benefits of $160.3 million and SERS had approximately 50,000
participanis receiving health care benefits, For the District, the amount to fund healih care benefits,
including surcharge, equaled $47,114 during the 1999 fiscal year.

NOTE 15 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

While reporting financial position, resulis of operations, and changes in fund balance is doneon a
GAAP basis, the budgetary basis, as provided by law, is based upon accounting for certain
transactions on a basis of cash receipts and disbursements.
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NOTE 15 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - Continued

The Combined Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and
Actual - All Governmental Fund Types is presented on the budgetary basis fo provide a meaningful
comparison of actual results with the budget. The major differences between the budget basis and
the GAAP basis are that:

{a) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when susceptible
to accrual {GAAP basis),

(b) Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when the liability is
incurred (GAAP basis);

{c} In order to determine compliance with Chio [aw, and to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of an expenditure (budget basis)
as opposed to a reservation of fund balance for governmental funds (GAAP basis).

The adjustments necessary ta convert the results of aperations for the year on the budget basis to
the GAAP basis for the governmental funds are as follows:

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over {Under) Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Governmental Fund Types

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Project
Budget basis $197,279 $ 5,798 $(19,235) $12,142
Net adjustment for
revenue accruals i 320,441 2,899 13,494 {4,526)
Net adjustment for
expenditure accruals (9,982) (10,093) 1 1,262
Net adjustment for other ]
financing scurces (Uses) (B50) {200} - ---
Encumbrances ‘
{budget basis) 32,255 8.712 1.500 4,251
GAAP basis $538,343 8,117 $ (42407  $13,129
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NOTE 16 - COCNTINGENCIES

A,

Grants

The District receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal, state and local
agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these programs
generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and
is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits
could become a liability of the general fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion
of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material effect en any of the financial
statements of the individual fund types included herein or on the cverall financial position of the
District at June 30, 1988,

Litigation
The District is not currently a party ta any legal proceedings.
State Schoo! Funding Decision

On March 24, 1997, the Ghio Supreme Court rendered a decision declaring certain portions of
the Chio school funding plan unconstitutional. The Court stayed the effect of its ruling for one
year to allow the State’s legislature to design a plan to remedy the perceived defects in that
system. Declared unconstitutional was the State's “school foundation program”, which provides
significant amounts of monetary support to this District. During the fiscal year ended June 30,
1999, the District received $1,724,638 of total school foundation support for its general fund.

Since the Supreme Court ruling, numercus pieces of legislation have been passed by the State
legistature in an attermpt to address the issues identified by the Court. The Court of Common
Pleas in Perry County has reviewed the new laws and, in a decision issued on February 26, 1999,
determined they are not sufficiently responsive to the constitutional issues raised under the
“thorough and efficlent” clause of the Ohio Constitution. The State has appealed the decision
made by the Court of Common Pleas to the Ohio Supreme Court. At this time, the Ohio Supreme
Court has not rendered an opinion on this issue. The decision of the Court of Common Pleas in
Perry County has been stayed by the Ohio Supreme Couri, and, as such, school districts are still
operating under the laws that the Common Pleas Court declarad unconstiiutional.

As of the date cof these financial statements, the District is unable to determine what effect, if any,
this ongoing litigation will have on its future State funding under this program and on its financial
operations. )

-35-



Lucas Local School District

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 1999

NOTE 17 - GROUP PURCHASING POOL

The District is a member of the Metropolitan Educational Council (MEC) purchasing group. The
following items are purchased through this group discount program; custodial products, food service
products, audio visual bulbs, and certain paper products. The MEC also provides a Self-Help Gas
Program where members save significant amounts on natural gas purchases.

NOTE 18 - STATUTORY RESERVES
The District is required by State law to set-aside certain general fund revenue amounts, as defined

by Statute, info various reserves. These reserves are calculated and presented on a cash basis.
During the fiscal year ended June 3Q, 1939, the reserve activity was as follows:

Capital Budget

Textbooks Acguisition Stabilization
Set-aside cash balance as of June 30, 1998 $ Q $ 0 $19,080
Current year set-aside requirernent 53,243 53,243 26,621
Current year offsets ) (9,0358) --- g
Qualifying disbursements (51.912) (158,726) Q9
Total $ (7.704) $(105,483) $45681
Cash balance carrded forward to FY 2000 P Q0. 3 O _ $45.681

Aithough the District had offsets and qualifying disbursements during the year that reduced the set-
aside amounts below zero, these extra amounis may not be used fo reduce the set-aside
requirements of future years. Negative amounts are therefore not presented as being carried forward
to the next fiscal year. :

A schedule of the resiricted assets at June 30, 1899 follows:

Amount restricted for budget stabilization . _ $45.681
Total restricied assetls 245881

NOTE 19 - SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 2, 1998, voters renewed an emergency operating fevy and elected Linda McFatland
and incumbent Michael Fanello to the School Board.
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Lucas Local School District
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (unaudited)

June 30, 1999

The Year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic daia processing systems and
other equipment that may adversely affect the District's operations as early as fiscal year 1999.

The District has completed an inventory of computer systems and other equipment necessary ta
conducting District operations and has identified such systems as being financial reporting, payroll
and employee benefits, fixed assets accounting and educational statistics reporting.

The District uses the State of Ohio Uniform School Accounting Systern software for its financial
reporting, the State of Ohio Uniform Schoal Payrell System software for its payrolt and employee
benefits, the State of Chio Equipment Inventory System for its fixed assets accounting and the State
of Ohio Education Management and Information System (EMIS) for its education statistics reporting.
The State is responsible for remediating these systems.

The Ohio Department of Education, Division of Information Management Services, State Software
Development Team has addressed the stafus of the OECN State Software in regards to the
compliance requirements for the Year 2000. Their assessmment is as follows:

-  The payroll processing software supported with the OECN State Software is compliant with
the Year 2000 beginning with the September 1997 release of USPS V4.0.

- The accounting software supported with the OECN State Software is compliant with the Year
2000 beginning with the June 1998 release of USAS V6.1,

- The eguipment inventory and vehicle inventory system software supported with the OECN
State Software is compliant with the Year 2000 beginning with the March 1999 release of
SAS V2.4, .

- The education management infarmation system software supporied with the CECN State
Software is compliant with the Year 2000 beginning with the September 1298 release of
EMIS V1.7,

Richland and Ashland Counties collect property taxes for distribution o the District. These Counties
are responsible for remediating their tax collection system.

The State of Ohio distributes a substantial sum of money to the District in the form of basic staie aid
“school foundation” and federal and state grant payments. Further, the State processes a significant
ameunt of financial and non-financial information about the District through EMIS. The State is
responsible for remediating these systems.

The District indicated that they have tested and validated their systems and they are Year 2000
compliant.

Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related
remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the Year 2000 and thereafter. Management
cannot assure that the Disttict is or will be Year 2000 ready, that the District's remediation efforts will
be successiul in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the District does business will be Year
2000 ready. '
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of General Purpose Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Education
Lucas Local Schoaol District
Lucas, Ohio 44843

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Lucas Local School District {the District), as
of and for the year ended June 30, 1999 and have issued our report thereon dated December 2, 19998, We
conducied our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. i '

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Lucas Local School District's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
coniracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an cpinion. The results of our tests disclosed
ne instances of noncompliance that are required o be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we censidered Lucas Local School District's internal control over financial
repcriing in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the intetmal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of
the internal control over financial reparting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of ocne or more of the internal components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatementis in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur
and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we
consider to be material weaknesses,

M An independently owned and operated professional corperation member of Moore Stephens North America, Inc, — members in principal cities throughout North America.
S Moore Stephens North America, In. is a member of Moore Stephens International Limited — members in principal citics thraughout the wordd.
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However, we noted a certain matter involving the intemal control over financial reporting that we have reported
io management of the District, in a separate letter dated December 2, 1999,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Education, management, federal

awarding agencies and pass-through entities and the Auditor of State and is not intended to be and shouid not
be used by anyone ather than these specified parties, o i

Woone Steplhens »bple

Akron, Ohio
December 2, 1999
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STATE OF OHIO
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

LUCAS LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

RICHLAND COUNTY

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION

- 88 East Broad Street

P.O. Box 1140
Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone 614-466-4514
800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-366-4490

This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the
Office of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and

which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

Date: JAN 1 8 2009
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